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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Strategic report

The directors present their strategic report for Brake Bros Limited (*Brakes”) for the year ended 3 July 2022. This report analyses the performance and
explains other aspects of the Brakes Group results and operations, indluding gy and risk mar it

Review of the business

The Brakes Group is a large European foodservice business supplying fresh, refrigerated and frozen food products, as well as non-food products and
supplies, to foodservice customers ranging from large customers, including leisure, pub, restaurant, hotel and contract catering Groups, to smaller customers,
including independent restaurants, hotels, fast food outlets, schools and hospitals. The Brakes Group largest businesses are in the United Kingdom (UK),
France, and Sweden, in addition to a presence in Iretand, Belgium, Italy and Portugal.

The Brakes Group supplies a broad variety of products, including a portfolio of privately branded products, which are generally delivered through its
distribution networks, consisting of central distribution hubs, satellite depots and its fleet of delivery vehicles. The principal trading companies in the Group are
Brake Bros Limited, Sysco Foods NI Limited, Fresh Direct (UK) Limited, Kent Frozen Foods Limited, Medina Quay Meats Limited, Sysco France SAS,
Menigo Foodservice AB, Clafra AB and EKO Fagel fisk och mittemellan ABEko Fisk AB.

On 1 September 2021, the Group acquired Medina Quay Meats Limited, a UK business based in Southampton and the Isle of Wight supplying local business
with a variety of fresh, frozen and ambient products.

Summary of resuits and key performance indicators

Revenue, operating profit, profit after tax, cash generated from operations and cash balance are considered to be the key performance indicators for the
Brakes Group.

The results for the Brakes Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income stat 1t on page 8 and a comparison of the results for the year ended 3
July 2022 is as follows:

Total revenue for the Brakes Group in the year totals £3,879.5m (2021: £2,602m), split as £2,185.2m (2021: £1,296.4m) for the UK (including lIreland),
£1,123.4m (2021: £827.2m) for France and £570.9m (2021: £478.4m) for Sweden in the year.

Operating loss before exceptionals in the year are £18.9m (2021: £181.3m operating loss before exceptional items) and the operating loss is £44.7m in the
year (2021: operating loss £207.8m). The loss after tax in the year is £54,3m (2021: £92.4m loss after tax).

Cash generated from operations was £80.1m in the year (2021: cash used in £33.6m) and the cash balance at 3 July 2022 is £53.7m (2021: £63.3m).
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group has a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects of financial risks for the Company and for its subsidiary undertakings
(see the Director's report below for further details). The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Brakes Group relate to a variety of risks that include
competitive risk, the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit risks, commodity price risks and liquidity risk.

« Competitive risk

The European foodservice distribution industry is fragmented and highly competitive, with local, regional, multi-regional distributors and speciality competitors.
New and increasing competition may result in increased focus on pricing and on limiting price increases, or may require increased discounting or other
concessions. Such competition or other industry pressures may result in margin erosion and / or make it difficult for the Group to attract and retain
Customers.

- The effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
The Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risks primarily with respect to Euro and Swedish Krona trade purchases.

« Price risk
Due to the nature of our distribution business, the Group is exposed to potential volatility in fuel prices primarily with respect to diesel purchases. The price
and availability of diesel fuel fluctuates due to changes in production, seasonality and other market factors generally outside of our control.

« Interest rate risk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities. Interest rate risk is not considered material for the Group.

- Credit sk

The Group's credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Group by failing to discharge an obligation.
« Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in ing its obligations iated with financial liabilities.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

S Whibley
Director
21 December 2022
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Brake Bros Limited
A | report and fi
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Directors’ report
The directors submit their annual report and the audited consolidated and parent company financial statements for the year ended 3 July 2022.
General information

Brake Bros Limited is a limited company incomporated in England and Wales and domiciled and operating in the United Kingdom. The Company's subsidiary
undertakings operate in the UK, France, Sweden and Ireland in addition to a presence in Ireland, Belgium, Italy and Portugal.

The immediate parent undertaking is Cucina Acquisition {(UK) Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales. The Company’s ultimate parent
undertaking and controlling party is Sysco Corporation, a company incorporated in the United States.

Future outlook and going concern

In assessing whether the financial statements for the Company and Group should be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have considered the
future outiook of the Company and of the Brake Bros Limited Group on a combined basis. The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking Sysco Corporation has
confirmed that they will continue to support the Company in order to allow it to satisfy its financial obligations in the normal course of business for a period of
12 months from the date of approval of the balance sheet. The Directors are satisfied that the ultimate parent undertaking Sysco Corporation has the ability to
provide this support, should it be required. The Directors of the parent forecast to have sufficient liquidity through the going concern period even under its most
downside forecast scenario and before any further mitigating actions it may take. The directors are satisfied that the Company and Group will have sufficient
funds to repay its liabilities as they fall due. Consequently, the financial statements of the Company and Group are prepared on the gaing concem basis.

Post balance sheet event

No other material events have occurred since the statement of financial position date which would affect the financial statements of the Company or Group.

Directors

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, unless otherwise stated, are given
below:

S Whibley

P F Jackson

P Peereboom - appointed 1 December 2022

S Brooksbank - appointed 1 December 2022

T Onting Jorgensen - resigned 3 May 2022

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 is in force for the benefit of each of the directors in respect of
liabiliies incurred as a result of their office, to the extent permitted by law. In respect of those liabilities for which directors may not be indemnified, the
Company maintained a directors' and officers’ liability insurance policy throughout the financial period and to the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Employment report ’

The Group aims to keep employees aware of all matenial factors affecting them as employees and the performance of the Group and their respective
businesses. It encourages good communication through regular meetings between management and staff, enabling senior managers to consult and
ascenain employees' views on all appropriate matters. This is supplemented by regular briefings, intranet and e-mail bulletins and divisional newsletters.
Employees are encouraged to participate in the performance of the Group by way of bonus schemes,

The Group employs over 12,000 people. We provide extensive training and career development programmes. |t is our policy to achieve and maintain a high
standard of health and safety at work and to ensure everyone, regardless of race, religion or sex, and including disabled people where reasonable and
practicable, is treated in the same way as regards applications for employment, training, career development and promotion. Every effort is made to help with
the rehabilitation of anyone injured during their employment, and to provide support we have an Employee Assistance Programme.

Health and safety

As a business the Group is strongly committed to providing a safe and responsible place to work. Concemn for the wellbeing of our staff is a key etement in
our drive to be “a great place to work” and we demonstrate this commitment through ongoing training and education of all our employees; working closely with
our insurance providers and equipment Suppliers to ensure sharing of best practice and leading edge health and safety solutions.

Directors Duties

The Directors of the Company are required to act in accordance with a set of general duties which are detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006,
A Director of a Company must act in a way that they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promate the success of the Company for the benefit of its
shareholders as a whole, and faidy, and in doing so have regard (along with other matters) to:
. the likely consequence of the decisions in the long-term;

the interest of the company’s employees;
. the need to foster the company's business relationships with Suppliers, Customers and others;

the impact of the company's operations on the community and environment;

the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct.
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Brake Bros Limited
I report and fi ial
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Dii s’ report ( j d)
The following paragraphs summarise how the Directors fuffil their duties:
Risk Management

The Risk Management framework is established at the Brake Bros Limited Group level. The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited have the responsibility
for setting the risk management policies, in compliance with Sysco Corporation risk management policies and applied throughout the Brake Bros Limited
Group of companies. This framework identifies, monitors, measures and implements strategies to manage and mitigate risk across the Group. Further detail
on Financial Risk management are set out further below in our description of Financial Risk Management.

Our people

Our people are the heart of our business. The Company and Group is committed to being a responsible employer and managing the performance, needs and
expectations of our employees in a fair and transparent manner. The Company and Group operates a number of initiatives promoting employee engagement,
health and well being.

Business relationships

Our Customers and Suppliers are key to our success. We foster long term relationships with our supplier network, fostering close collaboration and
development of sustainable quality chains of supply. Our relationships with Customers is paramount to the ongoing success of the business. The needs and
expectations of our Customers are integral in our business strategy and planning to ensure the Company and Group defivers to the highest safety and high
quality standards.

C nity and envir

Food distribution is not only our business — it is also our best opportunity to make a positive difference in the communities where we operate and live. The
Company and Group participates in a number of Community based programmes to raise money for good causes and provide goods to those in need.

The Company and Group is committed to delivering a better tomorrow. In 2019, the Brake Bros Group of Companies set out its Corporate and Social
Responsibility goals and targets to continue to reduce the Group's carbon footprint and commitment to sourcing sustainable, ethically sourced produce.

Shareholders

The Company’s ultimate parent company is Sysco Corporation, a Company incorporated in the United States. The Company is aligned to the strategic vision
of the Shareholder and discusses both short term and long term financial performance and business objectives regularly with Sysco management team.

Fi ial risk

The Group has operations in the UK, the Republic of Ireland and Continental Europe including Sweden and has debt financing which exposes it to a variety of
financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign curency exchange rates, interest rates, credit risks, commodity price risks and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited have the responsibllity for setting the risk management policies, in compliance with Sysco Corporation risk
management policies, applied by the Brake Bros Limited Group of companies. The policies are implemented by the central Group treasury department that
receives regular reports from the operating companies to enable prompt identification of financial risks so that the appropriate actions may be taken,

() Foreign currency exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks primarily with respect to the Euro and Swedish Krona although exposure to the Swedish Krona is not
considered material. The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency transtation risk.

The Group's operations in the UK and Sweden have inventory purchases denominated in currencies other than their functional currency, such as the Euro
and Danish Krone. These inventory purchases give rise to foreign currency exposure between the functional currency of each entity and these cumrencies.
The Group enters into foreign currency forward swap contracts to sell the applicable entity's functionat currency and buy currencies matching the inventory
purchase, which operate as cash flow hedges of the Group's foreign currency-denominated inventory purchases.

(b) Interest rate risk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities. The Group's interest rate risk primarily arises from floating interest rate fong term
borrowings owed to parent undertakings. Interest rate risk is not considered material for the Group.

(c) Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential Customers
before sales commence.

{d) Liquidity risk

The Group's funding is derived from borrowings and amounts funded from parent and Group undertakings that are designed to ensure the Group has
sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions. The Group also has access to intercompany funding from parent entities, whom have
access to an external Revolving Credit Facility of US$3,000 million amongst other facilities. The Group also participates in a cash pooling arrangement with
other Sysco Group entities providing additional sources of local liquidity as and when required.

(e) Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk primarily with respect to diesel purchases. The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to
limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using diesel fuel commodity swaps to hedge against future price changes.
Independent auditor

Emst & Young LLP shail remain in office until the Company or Emst & Young LLP otherwise detemmine.

Disclosure of inforration to auditors

Each of the persons who are a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

« so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

« the director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himselfherself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This cenfirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 418 of the Companies Act 2008.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {SECR) Statement
Introduction

The below statement cantains Brake Bros Ltd annual energy consumption, associated relevant greenhouse gas emissions, and additional related information,
as required under the Companies (Directors' Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018.

Methodotogy

The methodology applied to the calculation of Greenhouse Gas emissions is the ‘GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard’. An
‘operational controf’ boundary has been applied. Carbon conversion factors have been taken from ‘UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting — 2022'. Emissions are reported as CO2e. Only ‘location-based’ electricity emissions have been reported. Although not required under SECR
legistation, we have included fugitive emissions associated with the use of refrigerant gas under Scope 1.

Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The table below shows the total annual UK energy use and associated GHG emissions relating to the consumption of; electricity, natural gas, other fuels
combusted on-site, the use of refrigerant gases, and fuel consumed for relevant business transport purposes, for the period 1st July 2021 — 30th June 2022,
and previous years data for comparison,

Table - Energy C ion and Emissi 2021-22] 2020-21
On-site combustion (MWh) 7,489 8,106
Electricity (MWh) 69,248 64,656
Road Transport (MWh} 244,463 196,316
Total Energy (MWh) 321,200 269,078
Scope 1 Emissions (tCO,e) 64,044 52,482
Scope 2 Emissions (tCO,e) 13,283 13,728
Total Emissions (tCO.e) 77,327 66,210
Emissi I ity (tCOze/Em turnover) 35.8) 53.1

Emissions Intensity

For purposes of baselining and ongoing comparison, it is required to express the emissions using a carbon intensity metric. The intensity metric chosen is £m
tumover (UK and Ni). The resultant emissions intensity is 35.81CO2e/E€m

Energy Efficiency Action

In this financial year we have continued to closely monitor and manage energy consumption in-line with our Energy Management System I1SO50001, which
the majority of our UK operations are accredited to. In addition, our LED lighting installation programme has now finished in all warehouses. We have also
undertaken upgrades to loading bays at numerous sites, these include insutated dock surrounds to keep better temperature control.

During the current reporting period, over 22% of our electricity was procured from renewable sources, and we have also installed a 1MW solar aray on the
roof for one of our sites, creating green/clean electric with a plan to install more in the coming years. In comparison with the previous year, we have seen an
overall increase of 17% in emissions due to increased business activity as we rebound from the impacts of Covid-19, however this is still 2 14% decrease
from 2019-20. Analysis of the emission intensity reflects this, reducing from 53.1 to 35.8tCO2e/Em for the current year. This is also a reduction of just over
20% in intensity compared to 2019-20.
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Brake Bros Limited
A | report and fi ial
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Di s’ resp ibilitles
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the directors have prepared the Group and
Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

- prepare the Group financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group will continue in
business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

S Whibley Company registration number: 02035315
Director
21 December 2022 Registered office:

Enterprise House
Eureka Business Park
Ashford

Kent

TN25 4AG
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF Brake Bros Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Brake Bros Limited] (‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the
year ended 3 July 2022 which comprise the consalidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consclidated and company statements of financial position, the consolidated and company statements of changes
in equity, the consolidated and company statements of cash flows and the related notes 1 to 31, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
UK adopted Intemational Accounting Standards and as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group's and of the parent company'’s affairs as at 3 July 2022 and
of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting
Standards;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of 12 months from the date of approval of the balance sheet.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
. the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.
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We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report

to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial statements are ncot in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement [set out on page...], the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irreqularities, including fraud
Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to
fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting iregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of
fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

. We abtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and determined
that the most significant are those that relate to the reporting framework (Intemational Financial Reporting Standards,
Companies Act 2006, Bribery Act 2010 and relevant tax compliance regulations in the jurisdiction in which the Company
operates.

. We understood how the Company is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of management and observing
the oversight of those charged with governance. We corrobarated our enquiries through the review of the following
documentation:

- all minutes of board meetings held during the year; and
- any relevant correspondence with local tax authorities;

. We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might
occur by gaining an understanding of the entity level controls and policies that the Company applies. In doing so we
focused on the revenue recognition risk and designed and executed additional audit procedures to address the risk of
matenal misstatement, placing emphasis on testing of supplier and customer rebates.

. Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and regulations.
Our procedures involved focus on large or unusual transactions as well as enquiries of intemal counsel and management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report .

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

)gm»f Z \J/D"W‘afuf

Lloyd Brown (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

23 December 2022
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Consolidated i

For the year For the year
ended ended
3 July 2022 4 July 2021
Note £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 3,879.5 2,602.0
Operating costs 2 {3,924.2) (2,809.8)
Operating loss (44.7) {207.8)
Finance costs 3 (25.7) {23.5)
Finance income 3 13.2 13.5
Finance cost - net (12.5) (10.0)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 1§7.2) {217.8)
Income tax credit 4 2.9 125.4
Loss for the year after taxation {54.3) (92.4)

Loss attributable to owners of the company:
Owners of the parent company 22 (54.3) (92.4)
Non-controlling interest - -

(54.3) (92.4)

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company income statement. The profit
for the parent company for the year was £10.6m (2021: £97.6m loss).
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year

For the year

ended ended
3 July 2022 4 July 2021
Note £m £m
Loss for the year (54.3) (92.4)
Other comprehensive income / (expense):
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 33.5 141
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive
income 4 {5.9) {2.8)
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 27.6 11.3
items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges - gains arising in the year 22 6.2 1.6
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 (0.8) {0.1)
Currency translation differences 22 (2.8) 2.4
Total items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 2.6 3.9
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 30.2 15.2
Total comprehensive expense for the year (24.1) (77.2)
Total comprehensive expense for the period attributable to owners of the parent company (24.1) (77.2)
Total comprehensive expense for the period attributable to non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year (24.1) (77.2)

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

c pid d of fi for ition

As at 3 July 2022

3 July 2022 4 July 2021
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 6 196.4 189.2
Intangible assets 7 94.0 86.4
Property, plant and equipment 8 644.5 673.9
investments 9(a) 0.2 0.2
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) - 0.1
Deferred tax assets 19 168.1 171.0
1,103.2 1,120.8
Current assets
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) 6.2 -
Inventories 10 246.1 203.2
Trade and other receivables 1 877.3 749.9
Cash and cash equivalents 12 53.7 63.3
Current income tax assets 14 3.5 4.9
1,186.8 1,021.3
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 {120.3) (119.8)
Financial liabilities - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) - (0.1)
Lease obligations 15 {44.2) {45.9)
Trade and other payables 13 {1,109.3) (879.9)
Current income tax liabilities 14 - (0.4}
Provisions 18 (2.3) (3.4)
(1,276.1) (1,048.5)
Net current liabilities (89.3). (28.2)
Non-current liabilities
Lease Obligations 15 {291.9) (309.8)
Retirement benefit obligations 17 (38.2) (84.2)
Deferred tax liabilities 19 (7.8) {6.9)
Provisions 18 (43.8) (34.2)
(381.7) {435.1)
Net assets 632.2 657.6
Equity
Share capital 20 54 54
Share premium 21 288.6 2886
Other reserves 22 3704 367.8
Retained loss 22 (32.2) (4.2)
Total equity 632.2 657.6

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 43 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 December 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

S Whibley
Director
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Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Company 1t of fir ial position

As at 3 July 2022

3 July 2022 4 July 2021
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 6 28.2 282
Intangible assets 7 29.0 27.2
Property, plant and equipment 8 273.5 284.5
Deferred tax assets 19 54.2 64.2
Investments in subsidiaries 9 843.8 836.8
1,228.7 1,240.9
Current assets .
Inventories 10 86.5 73.6
Retirement benefit asset 17 4.2 -
Trade and other receivables 1 624.3 567.8
Cash and cash equivalents 12 10.9 8.7
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) 4.2 -
730.1 650.1
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (252.4) (251.9)
Lease obligations 15 (14.3} (14.5)
Trade and other payables 13 (675.1) (603.1)
Provisions 18 (1.2} (2.2)
(943.0) (871.7)
Net current liabilities (212.9) (221.6)
Non-current liabilities
Lease obligations 15 {151.2) (161.6)
Retirement benefit obligations 17 - (30.3)
Provisions 18 (31.7) (24.6)
(182.9) (216.5)
Net assets 832.9 802.9
Equity
Share capital 20 54 54
Share premium 21 288.6 288.6
Other reserves 22 4311 427.8
Retained earnings 22 107.8 - 81.1
Total equity '832.9 802.9

The notes an pages 16 to 43 farm an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 43 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 December 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

S Whibley Company registration number: 02035315
Director
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For the year ended 3 July 2022

(o2 lidated of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the parent company

Share Non-
premium Other Retained controlling
Share capital account reserves earnings Total interests  Total equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 28 June 2020 54 30.8 363.9 783 478.4 0.1 478.5
Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 22 - - - 0.2) (0.2) - (0.2)
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year 22 - - - (92.4) (92.4) - (92.4)
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Cash flow hedges 22 - - 1.6 - 1.6 - 1.6
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - - (0.1) - (0.1) - (0.1)
Long term incentive plan charge 22 - - - (1.2} {1.2) {(1.2)
Currency translation differences 22 - - 24 - 24 - 24
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 14.1 141 - 14.1
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 4 - - - (2.8) {2.8) - (2.8)
Total other comprehensive income - - 39 10.1 14.0 - 14.0
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - 3.9 (82.5) {78.6) - {78.6)
Issue of share premium 257.8 257.8 257.8
Balance at 4 July 2021 5.4 288.6 367.8 (4.2) 657.5 0.1 657.6
Comprehensive (expense)/income
Loss for the year 22 - - - (54.3) (54.3) - (54.3)
Other comprehensive income / (expense) - -
Cash flow hedges 22 - - 6.2 - 6.2 - 6.2
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - - (0.8) - (0.8) - {0.8)
Long term incentive plan charge 22 - - - (1.3) (1.3) - (1.3)
Currency translation differences 22 - - (2.8) - (2.8) - (2.8)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 335 33.5 - 33.5
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income / (expense) 19 - - - (5.9) (5.9) - (5.9)
Total other camprehensive income - - 2.6 263 28.9 - 28.9
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - 2.6 (28.0) (25.4) - (25.4)
Balance at 3 July 2022 5.4 288.6 370.4 {32.2) 632.1 0.1 632.2

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company of changes in equity
Attributable to owners of the parent company
Share
premium Other Retained
Share capital account reserves earnings Total equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 28 June 2020 5.4 30.8 389.6 166.6 592.4
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year 22 - - - (97.8) (97.6)
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Capital contribution received 22 - - 37.0 - 37.0
Cash flow hedges 22 - - 1.4 - 1.4
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - - (0.2) - 0.2)
Long term incentive plan charge 22 - - - (0.2) 0.2)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 1541 181
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - (2.8) (2.8)
Total other comprehensive income - - 38.2 12.1 50.3
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - 38.2 {85.5) (47.3)
Issue of share premium - 257.8 - - 257.8
Balance at 4 July 2021 54 288.6 427.8 81.1 802.9
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year 22 - - - 106 10.6
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Capital contribution received 22 - - - - -
Cash flow hedges 22 - - 4.1 - 4.1
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - - (0.8) - (0.8)
Long term incentive plan charge 22 - - - (0.6) (0.6)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 206 206
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - {3.9) (3.9)
Total other comprehensive income - - 3.3 16.1 19.4
Total comprehensive income - - 3.3 26.7 30.0
Balance at 3 July 2022 54 288.6 431.1 107.8 832.9

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 13



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 3 July 2022 Far the year ended 4 July 2021

Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated / (used in) from operations 23 80.1 (33.6)
Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 107.0 28.4
Exceptional items (26.9) (62.0)
Interest paid (0.2) {0.5)
Income tax paid (1.2) (4.7)
Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities 78.7 (38.8)
Cash flows (used in) / from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (43.0) (46.0)
Purchase of intangible assets {22.4) (21.1)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 5.6 2.8
Purchase / Sale of interest in subsidiary, net of cash transferred (8.2) (3.7}
Net cash used in investing activities (68.0) (68.0)
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares/other securities - 257.7
Payments from parent undertakings - 255.2
Payments from related undertakings 3141 8.6
Repayment of external borrowings - (600.0)
Lease capital repayments (53.5) (62.3)
Net cash used in financing activities (22.4) (140.8)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (11.7) (247.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at 4 July 2021 / 28 June 2020 12 63.3 312.5
Effects of exchange rate changes 2.1 (1.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at 3 July 2022 /4 July 2021 12 53.7 63.3

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 3 July 2022

For the year ended 4 July 2021

Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23 98.2 51.3
Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 103.5 63.9
Exceptional items (5.3) {12.6)
Interest (paid)/received (0.5) 0.4
Net cash generated from operating activities 97.7 51.7
Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking (8.2) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (24.2) (13.2)
Purchase of intangible assets (10.8) (12.7)
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1.9 2.8
Net cash used in investing activities (41.3) (23.1)
Cash flows from / {used in) financing activities
Capital contribution to subsidiary company - {362.5)
Payments from parent undertakings - 4109
Payments (to) / from related undertakings {35.5) 8.4
Loans to Group undertakings - {135.3)
Loans to parent undertakings - (10.2)
Payments from Group undertakings - 169.8
Repayments of external borrowings - (600.0)
Proceeds from investments - 257.7
Lease capital repayments (18.7) (23.2)
Net cash used in financing activities (54.2) (284.4)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2.2 (255.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at 4 July 2021 / 28 June 2020 12 8.7 264.5
Cash and cash equivalents at 3 July 2022/ 4 July 2021 12 10.9 8.7

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

General information

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of Brake Bros Limited ("the Group") and the parent company financial statements of Brake Bros Limited

("the Company"} for the year ended 3 July 2022. These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 December 2022. For practical reasons,
the Group and Company prepares its financial statements to the Sunday closest to the Company reference date of 30 June.

The financiat statements have been presented in Sterling (£) which is also the functional currency of the Company.
Significant accounting policies

The Company's principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation and going concern

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union. The consclidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and financial assets and financial liabilities (induding derivative instruments} at fair value through
profit or loss,

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial its are disclosed below within critical accounting estimates and assumptions.

In assessing whether the financial statements for the Company and Group should be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have considered the future outlook of the
Company and of the Group on a combined basis. The Directors have considered the future operating results, cash flows and facilities available.

The Company and Group participates in a European cash pooling arrangement with other Sysco Group entities providing additional sources of local liquidity as and when
required. This cash pool has direct access to an external Revolving Credit Facility of $US3,000m.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking Sysco Corporation has confirmed that they will continue to support the Company in arder to allow it to satisfy its financial obligations
in the normal course of business for a period of 12 manths from the date of approval of the balance sheet. The Directors are satisfied that the ultimate parent undertaking Sysco
Corporation has the ability to provide this support, should it be required. The Directors of the parent forecast to have sufficient liquidity through the going concern period even
under its most downside forecast scenario and before any further mitigating actions it may take.

Given the expected return to profitability and the continued parental suppon, the Directors deem it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis.
Basis of consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

These consolidated financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings. Subsidiaries include structured entities where
the substance of the relfationship between the Group and the structured entity indicates that it is controlled by the Group. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement
with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affects its returns. Subsidiaries are fully consoli d from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Uniform accounting policies are adopted across the Group. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

(b) Accounting for business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred indudes the fair value of any assets or liability arising
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree's net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For transactions with entities under common control the available exemption from IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' is taken and the predecessor method of accounting is used.
The identifiable assets and liabilities are measured at their pre-combination carrying value including any previously cansolidated goodwill, any differences on consolidation (i.e..
between the cost of investment and the carrying value of the net assets) are recognised in equity in retained eamings. The Group recognises the results of the acquired entity
from the date on which the business combination between entities under common control occurred.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those interests of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controfling interests' proportionate
share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other non-controtling interests are
initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to acquisition, the camying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

(c) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controiling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. The fair vatue is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest in the associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

If the ownership in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated income statement where appropriate.

Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from the distribution and sale of food and related products to its Customers. Substantially all revenue is recognized at the point in time in
which the product is delivered to the customer. The company grants certain Customers sales incentives, such as rebates or discounts, which could result in variable
consideration. The variable consideration is based on amounts known at the time the performance obligation is satisfied and, therefore, require minimal judgment. Revenue is
recognised at the transaction price net of any sales incentives, rebates or discounts which is agreed at contract inception.

Buying income

Buying income is received from Suppliers as a discount against the cost of products and services purchased. Discounts can take the form of banded overriders earned on
purchase levels, marketing income, or product specific rebates. The credit is recognised in the income statement either against direct purchase cost or other costs and inventory
is revalued to reflect the lower value after discount. Buying income is invoiced to or credited from Suppliers throughout the period, and at the period end any remaining
receivable is recorded in line with supplier arrangement terms and management estimates based on confirmations from Suppliers and contracts,

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the
grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Exceptional items

Where items of income and expense included in the consolidated income statement, including losses in respect of businesses exited or being exited are considered to be
material and / or outside the normal course of business, separate disclosure of their nature and amount is provided in the consolidated financial statements. These items are
classified as exceptional items. The Group considers the size and nature of an item both individually and when aggregated with similar items, when considering whether it is
material.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is shown at historical cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment.
Cost represents invoiced cost plus any other costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. The Group capitalises borrowing costs directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Group charges borrowing costs to the consolidated income statement for non-
qualifying assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Depreciation is provided on all other property, plant and equipment to write down their cost or, where their useful economic lives have been revised, their carrying amount at the

date of revision to their estimated residual values on a straight line basis over the periods of their estimated, or revised, remaining useful economic lives respectively. These
lives are considered to be:

Freehold buildings - between 17 and 40 years

Leasehold buildings - the period of the lease or 40 years whichever is the shorter
Motor vehicles - between 5 and 12 years

Plant and equipment - between 3 and 40 years

Information technology hardware - between 3 and 5 years

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed each financial period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Profits and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within the consofidated income statement.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are dassified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is met only when the sale is highly probable and the

asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to take place within one year from the date
of reclassification.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

investments in subsidiaries held as non-current assets are accounted for at cost less any provision for impairment in value. If the directors consider that the fair value of
investments in subsidiaries are betow their carrying value then a provision for impairment would be made.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in ‘intangible assets'. Goodwill is not subject to annual amortisation but is instead tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses an goodwill are not reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

(b) Computer sofiware
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised as an intangible asset on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific software. Directly
attributable costs associated with the development of software that are expected to generate future economic benefits are capitalised as part of computer software.

Where software costs are capitalised they are amortised using the straightdine basis to write them down to their estimated realisable value over their estimated useful economic
lives, which are considered to be between three and five years.

The residual value and useful economic life are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate at each statement of financial position date.

(c) Customer contracts and relationships
Customer lists and customer contracts and relationships are acquired separately or as part of a business combination.

For those customer lists and customer contracts or relationships acquired separately, an intangible asset is recognised on the basis of the costs to acquire the customer lists and
customer contracts and relationships together with any directly attributable costs of acquiring the asset.

For those customer lists and customer contracts and relationships acquired as part of a business combination, the fair value of the asset is recognised at the date of the
acquisition, in accordance with IFRS 3.

Customer lists and customer contracts and relationships are amortised on a straight line basis over their expected useful economic lives, which are considered to be between 3
and 11 years. These are assumed to have no residual value at the end of their expected useful economic life.

() Brands

Brands are acquired separately or as part of a business combination. For those brands acquired separately, an intangible asset is recognised on the basis of the costs to acquire
the brands together with any directly attributable costs of acquiring the asset. For those brands acquired as part of a business combination, the fair value of the asset is
recognised at the date of the acquisition, in accordance with IFRS 3.

Brands are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful economic lives, which are considered to range from 10 to 25 years. These are assumed to have no
residual value at the end of their expected useful economic life.

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed during each financial perod. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment of non-financlal assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful economic life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items. Cost comprises direct purchase costs and overheads
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and cosls to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 2 months overdue) are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of a trade receivables impairment account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement within direct purchase cost. When a trade receivable is uncollectable it is written off against the trade receivables
impairment account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited in the consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank (being the cash book balance) and in hand, short-term deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. Bank overdrafts are presented in current liabilities to the extent that there is no
right of offset with cash balances.
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1. Accounting policies {continued)
Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised. Deferred
income tax is measured on an undiscounted basis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined benefit pension plans

Foliowing the amendment to |AS 18 'Employee Benefits' issued in December 2004 and subsequently revised in June 2011, the Group has adopted an accounting policy whereby
actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit pension schemes are taken through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in full each period, and the full deficit on
an JAS 19 basis is included within the consolidated statement of financial position.

In the UK the Group operates a defined benefit funded pension scheme covering a numi:er of its employees. The scheme is a contracted out defined benefit scheme, providing
final salary related benefits accrued for each year of service. The scheme was made fully paid up at 31 December 2003 and no further benefits are accruing to members
subsequent to this date. In addition, in Brakes Continental Europe Division and Sweden the Group is liable for certain post employment benefits which meet the criteria of a
defined benefit plan. These obligations are of an unfunded nature.

The charge in the consolidated income 1t in respect of the defined benefit pension plans comprises a net interest expense / income calculated as the product of the net
defined benefit liability / asset and the discount rate as determined at the beginning of the period. The net interest expense / income is recognised in finance costs / income. Past
service costs are recognised immediately in income.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the date of
the statement of financial position less the fair value of the plan assets. The independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method and assumptions agreed with the
trustees and directors, calculates the defined benefit obligation annually. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash flows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

The defined benefit pension obligation has been calculated by the scheme actuary for each reporting date, using the projected unit credit methed and assumptions agreed with
the Group (see note 17 to the finandial statements).

Actuarial gains and losses arise from experience adjustments (the effects of differences between previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and changes in
actuarial assumptions. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full, in the period they occur, in the statement of comprehensive income.

Defined contribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to independently administered pension plans on a contractual basis. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.

Provisions

Provisions are formed for legally enforceable or constructive obligations existing on the date of the statement of financial position, the settlement of which is likely to require
outflow of resources and the extent of which can be reliably estimated. Where material to the financial statements, provisions are discounted over the life of their expected cash
flows.

Trade payables and other payables
Trade payables are non interest-bearing and are stated at amortised cost.
Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group's subsidiary companies are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the subsidiary
operates (‘the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which is the Group's presentational currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the consclidated statement of financial
position. Differences arising on translation are charged or credited to the consolidated income statement except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

The income statements of foreign subsidiary companies are translated into sterling at monthly average exchange rates for the Euro and Swedish Krona at 1.18 (2021: 1.128)
and 12.18 (2021: 11.54) respectively and the statements of financial position are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the statements of financial position being
1.16 (2021: 1.17) for Euros and 12.53 (2021: 11.85) for Swedish Krona. On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
subsidiaries, and of borrowings designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. These exchange differences are disclosed as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity within other reserves.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Borrowings and finance costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value (being the issue proceeds), less attributable transaction costs.

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is adjusted for the amortisation of any transaction costs. The
amortisation is recognised in finance costs. Transaction costs are amortised over the expected term of the related financial instruments.

All borrowings denominated in currencies other than sterling are translated at the rate ruling at the statement of financial position date.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of
financial position date.

Finance income
Finance income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following category: loans and receivables. The' classification is based on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months afier the date of the statement of financial position. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise 'trade and other receivables' and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, principally commodity swaps to hedge the diesel price, foreign cumrency forward swap contracts to manage foreign exchange
risk and interest rate caps to manage the interest rate risk on interest payments. The Group does not use derivative financia! instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently re-measured at fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either:

- hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge)
- hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

The Group documents at or near to the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives
and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.

The fair value of derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 16 (b). Movements on the hedging reserve in shareholders' equity are shown in note 22,
The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than one year and as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than one year.

(a) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in ‘finance costs - net' in the consolidated income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the consolidated income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income statement within ‘finance costs - net’. The gain or loss refating
to the ineffective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income statement within ‘finance costs - net'.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or where a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the consolidated income st it. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the consolidated income statement within ‘finance costs - net'.

(b) Net investment hedge
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges.

Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement within finance costs - net'. Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the consolidated income statement when
the foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold.

Share capital

Where the Company issues shares or other financial instruments, these financial instruments are classified as a finandial liability, financial asset or equity according to the

substance of the contractual arrangement, or its component parts. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in the same respective category to
which the costs relate. Dividends or interest arising on such financial instruments are recognised according to the classification of the financial instrument.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Share based payments

Certain Group employees are members of a share based payment arrangement provided by Sysco Corporation. Cash settled share based payments to certain employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair value of the share based payment is expensed on an
accelerated basis to reflect the vesting as it occurs over the requisite service period over the duration of the award. The requisite service period is generally the period which the

employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. A liability is recognised, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At each balance sheet date until
the liability is setited, and at the date of setttement, the fair value of the liability is remeasured with any changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

Critical ing judgements and

The Group makes judgements and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
judgements and key sources of estimation that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period are discussed below,

(a) Impairment review of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment loss, in accordance with the accounting policy stated above. The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units (CGUs) have been determined based on value-in-use calcutations. These calculations require the use of estimates in relation to future cash flows and suitable
discount rates as disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements. Actual outcomes could vary from these estimates.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the key assumptions used for assessing the goodwill. The directors’ impairment assessment of the impairment and sensitivity
analysis are disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

(b) Impairment review of brands and customer contracts and refationships
In addition to testing annuatly whether goodwill has suffered any impairment the Group also tests annually for brands and customer contracts and relationships to see if they
have suffered any impairment.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the key assumptions used for assessing the brands and customer contracts and relationships. The directors have concluded that
for the UK and Ireland, France and Sweden there is no impairment because they have headroom of recoverable amounts in excess of carrying values and it is considered that
there are no reasonably possible changes in key assumptions which would cause the carrying amount of brands and customer contracts and relationships to exceed the value-in-
use.

(c) Employee benefits - defined pension obligation

One of the key assumptions used in determining the valuation at 3 July 2022 is the UK discount rate of 3.65%. Whilst the directors consider that the adoption of a 3.65%
discount rate is appropriate if the rate used had been 0.2% higher or lower the retirement benefit asset would have been approximately £5.9m lower or higher. Another key
assumption used in determining the valuation is the mortality assumption. If the average life expectancy in years of pensioner retiring was 1 year higher or lower than that used
in the valuation the retirement benefit obligation would have been approximately £6.8m higher or lower.

(d) Income taxes - deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the Group's provision for deferred taxation. There are certain
terms for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities and assets for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due or recoverable. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

A deferred tax asset of £118.5m (2021: £109.9m) is recognised in respect of certain tax losses across the Group. The key assumption used in recognition of this asset is based
upon a track record of generating taxable profits over the past five years and management's forecasts for taxable profits for the next five years, and the assumption that the
losses will be available for utilisation. If the tax losses were subsequently found not to be available for utilisation against taxable profits then the deferred tax asset would no
longer be recognised and there would be a charge of £118.5m (2021: £109.9m) in income taxes in the consolidated income statement.

(e} Funding, liquidity, going concern and covenant compliance

The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term facilities that are designed to ensure the Group has sufficient available funds for operations and planned
expansions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (borrowing facilities available and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash
flow. The Group maintains liquidity through available cash reserves and borrowing facilities available primarily through Sysco Corporation Group undertakings.

In assessing whether the financial statements for the Group are prepared on the going concem basis, the Directors have considered the future outlook of the Group. Having
considered the future operating profits, cash fiows and facilities available to the Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient funds to repay its liabilities
as they fall due. Consequently, the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

(h Exceptional cost policy

The Group's accounting policy for exceptional items requires items of income and expense that are considered to be material and outside the normal course of business to be
disclosed separately in the financial statements. Determining which items meet this definition requires judgement, particularly in relation to employee and other costs which
require classification between exceptional items and those incurred in the normal course of business. Note 2 to the financial statements describes the nature of the Group's
exceptional items. Certain employee costs within ‘business change costs' and transitional dual running costs incurred within the ‘restructuring of the UK distribution network'
require the most degree of judgement.

(g) Business combinations

The recognition of business combinations requires the excess of the purchase price of acquisitions over the net book value of assets acquired to be allocated to the assets and
liabilities of the acquired entity. The Group makes judgements and estimates in relation to the fair value aflocation of the purchase price. if any unallocated portion is positive it is
recognised as goodwill and if negative, it is recognised in the income statement.
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2. Revenue and operating profit

For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July

2022 02t

£m im

Rovenue - products 28785 26020
i (22163) (1.937.1)

Trading prott 9633 6349
ting costs @21.5) (604.6)

Gross profit 218 800
Admiristrative expenses (@28
Exceptional itoms (sae below) (26.6)
fon of intangibl (189)

Total 287.8)
207.8)

The Group operaiing losa i ived from material

The Group's ravenuo primarily comprises of saleg to Customers witin tha Urited Kingdom (ncluding the Repubiic of Irelend) amounting to £2,185.2m (2021 £1,296.4m), within France amounting to £1,123.4m (2021
£627.2m) and 2021: £478.4m). The is as follows:

For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
22 202
em m
Heafthcare and Hosgitality 2.2 79
Cairy Products 4002 %78
Meats 5283 3
Soatood 160.7 1011
Poutvy 138 991
Frozen 969.2 7206
Conned and Ory 8933 489
Paper and Dicpatables 100 77
Chemicat and Joritarial 34 28
‘Supply and Equipment 1768 752
Produce 3836 2208
Dispancer Beversga %12 1628
Cansumer sales - el
Alcohol 28 1
Intercompany 6oten to ather Sysco Companies 10.8 125
Other income pIEY 183
Total 34785 26020
For the year For tho year
ended 3 July ended 4 1dy
222 2021
Profit on ordinary actvi in amived at after charging: em £m
Employment costs (note 25) 5418 4431
Invenories
~ cost o inventories racogrised a8 an expensa (included in direct purchase cost) 28980 18324
- wita dovms and losaes incurred in the year / period 182 a7
Amortisation of intangitta assats 0 189
Oepreciation of property, Flant snd equipment
- owned assets as 04
- Right-of-ssa assets s.2 14
Lass on sala af praperty, ptant and equipment 28 80
Repai i itwre on property, i 520 360
I (©9) 58
Exceptionat items
- Restnucturing of the UK distribution network a0 .8
- Other UK (inclucing ROI) restructuring costs nd othor costs 103 65
- Syscs Franca cestucnsing and other costs 48 20
- Menigo Foodservice AB resiruciuring costs and sther costs 05 18
- Covie1g [ (54
Total except 258 266

Restructuring of the UK distribution network

The Group continues to incur casts in relation (o the overhaul of the distibution network and rastructuring of

focnited to manage the programme implemeniation and TansiSonal dual running costs incurred during the
iabii 0250 10 bo i condlusion of

Grmation systems' infrastructure in the UK. The Group ha incurred significant costs on dedicated teams
of transferting volumes fram closing ites to few Sitea and associatod provision for onerous contracts and

ther UK (including RO rostructuring end aiher costs
During the year, the b in the UK i i 38 part of i ip team 8 3 restrucauring e
inthe e,

Acauiition osts for & company acauired in the yoar, Modina Quay

d i ioodwards, a business perating are eloo indluded.
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2. Revenue and aperating profit (continued}

Exceptional items (continued)

Sysco France restructuring costs
Sysco France incurred restructuring costs in refation to the operatiol

Menigo Foodservice AB resinicturing costs

nal merger of various operations through France, In addition, income was received in respect of site closures.

Merigo Foodservice AB incurred restructuring costs in refation to roles permanently removed from the business and costs in relation to re-branding during the year.

Cavid-13
The credit relates to the releass of bad debt provisions made in the

Auditors

previous year no longer required due to the recovery of the debt.

Ouring the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Group's auditors and its assaciates at the following costs:

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent company amaunted to £1.2m (2021: £1.7m). Fees payabls to the Company's auditor and ite associates for other services are detailed as follows:

For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 2021
Other services: €m £m
The audit of the Company's parent and subsidiary undertakings 1.0 1.5
Other non-audit services 0.2 0.2
1.2 1.7
3. Finance costs - net
For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 2021
£m £m
Finance costs:
Other loans and charges 3.09) (7.6)
Loans from parent undentakings (8.2) 5.7
Leaso obligations. 13.3) (8.8)
Net interest on net defined banefit liability (note 17) (1.2) (1.4)
Total finance costs (25.7) (23.5)
Finance income:
Other interest income 0.1 0.6
Loans to parent undantakings 13.1 12,8
Total finance incoms 1.2 13.8
Finance costs - net (12.8) (10.0)
4. Income tax credit
For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
Toxation is based on the profit for the year and comprises: 2022 2021
£m £m
Current tax
- current yoar Group refie! 27 2.9
- adjustments in respect of provious years (0.3) -
- Oversess toxation 0.4 23
Deferred taxation
- origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.8 (40.0)
- overseas deferred taxation (6.5) 86.0]
Income tax credit {2.9) {125.4]
A reconciliation of the tax credit for the year compared to the effective standard rate of corporation tax is summarised below.
For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 202¢
£m £m
(Loss) on ordinary activities before tax (51.2) (217.8)
At 18.00% (2021: 19.00%) (10.8) (41.4)
Effects of.
Adjustrments to tax chargoe in respect of previous years (0.3} -
Adjustments to deferred tax charge in respect of current year 5.7 {85.8)
Expensas not daductibte for tax purposes and other adjustments 138 1.8
Tax credit (2.9) (125.4)

The main UK corporation tax rate has been 19% since 1 Aptil 2017,

. During the prior year the Chancallor announced a changs in the main rats of corporation tax to 25% from 1 April 2023,
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4, Income tax credit (continued)

In addition to the amount credited to the income statement, the following amaunts relating to tax hava been recognised in other comprehensive income:

For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 2021
£m £m
Current tax
lterns that will not ba reclassifiad to profit or loss:
Overseas taxation (credit) / charge on retirement benefit obligation - -
Deferred tax
items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss:
Deferred tax charge on retirement benefit obligation actuarial gains and losses 5.9 28
items that may not be reclassified (o proft or loss:
Deferred tax (credit) / charge on cash flow hedges {ses note 19) 0.8 0.2
6.7 3.0

5. Prafit/ (Loss) of the Parent Company for the financlal year

The Company has taken advaniage of section 408 of the C. Act 2006 and has not anincome The Company's profit for the financial year amounted to £10.6m (2021: £87.5m loss).
6. Goodwill
Group Company
£m £m
Cost and net book value
At 4 July 2021 189.2 28.2
Exchange adjustment 0.2 -
Acqguisition of subsidiaries (note 23) 7.0 .
As at 3 July 2022 196.4 28.2
Group Company
£m £m
Cost and net book volue
At 28 June 2020 181.2 8.2
Exchange adjustment {2.0) -
At 4 July 2021 189.2 28.2
The gaodwill has been allocated to cash-genarating units ("CGUS") and & summary of the carrying smounts af goodwill by business segments (representing Groups of CGUB) is as follows:
At 3 July At 4 July
2022 2021
Group £m £m
UK and ireland 1215 1145
France 426 424
Sweden 32.3 323
Cost and net book vatus 196.4 189.2

In the UK and Irsland sogment the core foodservice CGUs comprises Broadline, Country Choica, Ireland, Fresh Direct Modina and KFF, In France it principally comprises the trading company Syaco France SAS and in
Sweden it principally comprises the trading company Menigo Foodservice AB.

Within the UK and Iretand the significant balances of goodvill are £48.1m (2021: £48.1m) for Broadline {including Country Choice), £52.7m (2021: £52.7m) for Fresh Direct, £13.7m (2021: £13.7m) for Kent Frozen Foods and
€7.0m (2021: £0.0m) for Medina,

impairment reviews

An overview of is i reviaws by is set out below. The recoverable amount of a CGU is i due-i use pre-tax cash flow projections based on

A Y on
intemal forecasts approved by management covering the net three financial years, Subsequent cash flows boyond are extrapolated using the

ons. T .
estimated growth rate stated below.

The key ons i the value-i ions wora:

- Revenue growth. This was based on expected levels of activity under existing major contractun amangements together with growth based upen modium term historical growth rates and having regard for expected ecanamic
and market conditions for ather Customers,

s ion for each sil product line, having regard for contractual arrangements and sxpactad changes in market conditions.

~ Operating cost growth, This assumption was based upon
- Discount rates, The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections are based on an appropriate weighted average cost of capital for the Group and reflect specific risks refating to the relevant operating segments.

- Long term GDP growth rats. The long tarm growth rates applied to the cash flow projections are based on acanomic forecasts relating to the relevant operating segments.

The forecasts are based on the approved management plan covering the next thres financial years. Subsequent cash flows have been forecast to increaso by 3.0% (2021: 3.0%) for all CGUSs in the UK and Ireland, 3.0%
(2021: 3.0%) in France and 3% (2021: 3.5%) in Sweden in line with the long term GDP growth rats and including inflation, reflacting minimum management expectations based on historica) growth, The cash flows in the

reportabls segments were discounted primarily using post-tax discount rates between 8% and 10.5% (2021 between 9.0% and 10,5%) in the UK and lreland, 8% (2021: 8.0%) in France and 8% (2021: 9.0%) in Sweden. The
directors have concdluded that there is no impairment because there is a headroom of recaverable amounts in excess of carrying values.
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?. Intangible Assets

Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands. relationships. software Total
Group £m £&m £m £m
Cost
At 4 July 2021 279 521 200.5 280.5
Exchange adjustment (0.1) {0.2) 0.5 (0.8)
Reclassification - . 1.5 1.5
Acquisition of Business 0.8 57 - 6.5
Additions. - . 224 224
Disposats - - 01.9) (1.0)
As at 3 July 2022 28.6 57.6 222.9 308.1
Accumulated amortisation
At 4 July 2021 10.9 325 150.7 184.1
Exchange adjustment (0.0) ©.1) (0.4) (0.5)
Reclassification - - 0.2 0.2
Charge for the year 7 48 147 21.0
Impairment 1.1 - - 1.1
isposals 3 - {0.8) (0.8)
As at 3 July 2022 13.7 7.0 164.4 215.1
Net book value at 3 July 2022 14.9 20.6 58.5 94.0
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relationships software Total
Group Em £m £m £m
Cost
Al 28 Juns 2020 285 526 2027 283.8
Exchange adjustment ©.8) - 37 (4.3
Additions - (0.5) 211 206
Disposals of business - - (1.2) (1.2)
i L hd = (18.4) (18.4)
At 4 July 2021 27.8 521 200.5 280.5
Accumudated amortisation
At 28 June 2020 8.4 281 160.9 198.4
Exchange adjustment 0.2) - 3.4) (3.6
Charga for the year 17 4.4 128 18.8
Disposale of business. . - (0.8} 0.8)
Disposals - - 118.8) {18.8)
At 4 July 2021 108 325 150.7 184.1
Net book value st 4 Juty 2021 17.0 19.6 49.8 86.4
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relationships software Tota!
Company £m £m £m
Cost
At 4 July 2021 22 - 76.4 78.6
Additions. . . 108 10.8
Redassification - - (1.0) (1.0)
Disposals - - (1.0) (1.0)
As at 3 July 2022 22 - 85.2 37.4
Accumulated amortisation
At 4 July 2021 1.1 - 503 514
Charge for the year 01 - 6.8 7.0
tmpaimment 1.0 - - 1.0
Disposals . - (1.0) (1.0)
As at 3 July 2022 22 - 58.2 58.4
Net book value at 3 July 2022 - - 29,0 29.0
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relationships software Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 28 June 2020 22 - 79.5 81.7
Additions - - 127 127
Bi I - = (15.8) (35.8)
At 4 huty 2021 22 - 76.4 788
Accumulated amortisation
At 28 Juns 2020 1.0 - 61.1 621
Charge for the period 0.1 - 5.0 51
Disposals - L3 {15.8) {158
At 4 July 2021 1.1 - 50.3 51.4
11 = 26.1 27.2

Not book value at 4 July 2021
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8. Property, plant and equipment

Information
Land and Motor Plantand technalogy
buildings vehicles equipment hardware Tota!
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 4 July 2023 619.6 204.1 2035 44.8 10721
Exchange adjustments n ©.1) - 0.7) (2.5}
Retassifications (7.3) ©.2) 28) (0.8) (11.0)
Acquisition of Business 28 0.4 0.2 - 34
Additions 19.0 267 202 8.0 738
Disposals (7.9) (11.1) (11.3) {4.3) (34.6)
As at 3 July 2022 624.5 219.8 210.0 47.0 1,101.3
Accumulated depreciation
At 4 July 2021 159.4 0.8 155 25 398.2
Exchange adjustment 0.8) 0.4} 0.1} - 0.8)
Redlassifications. (5.5) {0.2) (1.0} {0.9) 73
Charge for the year 40.4 325 175 4.7 85.1
Impaiments. .3 0.6) 0.6) - 2.5)
Disposals 3.9) (8.8) {8.3) {4.1) (281
As at 3 tuly 2022 188.5 1138 122.0 32.7 456.8
Net book vajue at 3 July 2022 438.0 108.2 88.0 14.3 844.5
Reclassifications from property, plant and equipment in the year ended 3 July 2022 primarily relato to six sites in France that viera dlassified as held for sale and recorded within other prepayments under IFRSS,
Information
Land and Motor Plant and techrology
buildings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 28 June 2020 558.8 217.6 219 41.0 1,028.6
Exchange adjustments. (147) (4.5) 8.2) .7 (26.1)
Reclassifications 4.8 ©7) (1.3} 4.1 Q1)
Additions 8ag 135 25.4 42 1320
Disposals of business {3.3) {20) (.2 (0.4) (6.8)
Disposals (15.0) 198) (14.3) (3.3) (52.4)
At 4 July 2021 618.6 204.1 2035 4.8 1,072.1
Accumulated depreciation
At 28 June 2020 1387 n2 1169 85 361.3
Exchange adjustment (4.1) (1K)} (2.8) @5) 8.5)
Redassifications 1.0} (0.4) {2.3) 29 10.8}
Charge for the year 7o 324 16.5 4.9 81.8
Disposals of business {0.8) 1.3y (0.8) (0.4} 3.4)
Digy 1 {10.3) (17.0) (12.0) (2.8) (42.2)
At 4 July 2021 159.4 50.8 155 325 398.2
Net book vatue at 4 July 2021 460.2 1133 88.0 12.4 8738
Land and Wuildings comprise:
A3 Jly A8 July
02 2024
£m £m
Cost
Freehold 280.9 286.4
Long teasehold 258 28.0
Short lsaseho!d 307.8 309.0
624.5 621.4
Accumulated depreciation
Frechold (1.s) 9.0
Long leasehold .1 ©.9)
Short leasehold (75.9) 623
(188.5) 161.2

The Group leases many assets including property, vehicles and equipment. Included within total tangible assets are the following Right-of-use assets recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 “Leases”.

Land and Plantand  Total Right of
Right-of-use assets buildings  Motor Vehicles equipment Use assets
€m €m £m £m
Batance at 4 July 2021 722 558 58 EARN]
Exchange £.5) 0.1 - 1.4)
Rectassifications - 0.1 - 0.1
Acquisitions of businessas 26 - - 26
Additions to right-ot-use assets 1.4 16.4 21 298
Deprediation (28.1) (18.5) (2.6) (51.2)
Disposals 0.1) (1.1) - (1.2)
Balance at 3 July 2022 255.5 51.8 53 3126
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8. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Intormation
Lond and Motor Plant and technalogy
buildings vehicdes equipment hardware Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 4 July 2021 255.2 121.4 70.5 25.4 4725
Reclassification - - - 1.0 1.0
Additions 29 11.4 6.7 3.2 242
Disposals 0.7 (2.8) (6.0} (3.1) (12.6)
As at 3 July 2022 257.4 130.0 71.2 26.5 485.1
Accumulated depreciaion
At 4 July 2021 59.7 55.1 518 21.4 188.0
Reclassification - - - - -
Charge for the year 13.2 139 55 1.8 345
Disposals 0.4 (.7 (5.7 3.1) (10.9)
As at 3 July 2022 72.5 67.3 51.6 20.2 2118
Net book value at J July 2022 184.9 62.7 19.6 5.3 2735
Information
Land and Motor Plant and technology
buildings vehidos equipment hardware Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 28 June 2020 2436 1311 763 224 473.4
impact of adoption of IFRS 16 . . (©.3) 29 26
Additions 15.7 57 33 24 270
Disposals {4.1) {15.4) (8.8), (2.3) (30.6)
At 4 July 2021 255.2 121.4 705 25.4 4725
Accumutoted depreciation
At 28 June 2020 49.9 547 558 17.7 177.8
tmpact of adoption of IFRS 16 - - ©.2) 29 27
Charge for the year 135 138 5.0 31 353
Disposals {37) (13.4) {8.6) (2.3) {28.0)
At 4 Juty 2021 59.7 55.1 51.8 21.4 188.0
Net book value at 4 July 2021 185.4 664 18.8 3.8 2845
tand and tuildings comprise;
At 3 July At 4 July
2022 2021
£m £m
Cost
Freehotd 85.9 84.4
Long leasehold . -
Short lezsehold 171.5 170.8
257.4 255.2
Accumulated depreciation
Frechold 3.9 3.3
Long leasshold - -
Short teasehold 388 28.4
2.5 59.7
The Company leases many assats indluding property, vehicles and equipment, Included within total tangible assets are the following right-of-usa assets recognised in accordance with (FRS 16 "Leases".
Information
Land and Plant and technology  Total Right of
Right-cfwse assets buildings Motor Vehicles equipment hardware Use assets
£m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 4 July 2021 1440 8.9 0.4 0.1 153.0
Additions to right-of-use assats 08 30 - - 38
Oepreciation (10.3) (3.2) - - (13.5)
Disposals - (1.1) - - {1.1)
134.5 7.6 0.1 0.1 142.2

Balance ot 3 July 2022
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9. Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiary undertakings tequity)

At cost Provision Write dawn  Net book value

Company £m £m £m £m
At 4 July 2021 889.3 6.2) (86.3) 836.8
Write down of investment in dormant company (3.0 3.0 (258.7) (258.7)
Additional shares acquired during the petiod 265.7 - 3 265.7

. Asat3July 2022 1,162.0 {3.2) (315.0) 843.8

The additional shares acquired during the year comprise of £17.0m for Medina Quay Meats and £248.7m for additional investment in Sysco France Holding. The investment in Sysco France Halding was obtained from ancther
of the company's subsidiary entities, Cucina French Holdings. The write down of investments in the year of £258.7m refates to the investment held in Cucina French Haldings which was made dormant during the year

At cost Provision Write down  Net book valus
Company £m £m £m £m
At 28 June 2020 4753 (6.2) (54.3) 414.8
Capital Contribution during the period 57.5 - - 57.5
Write down of investment in dormant company - . (20) 0
Additionat shares acquired during the period 386.5 - - 386.5
At 4 July 2021 899.3 (6.2) 56.3) 836.8
LIS A0s A58,

The additional shares acquired during tha year comprise £1.7m for Amofts (Fruit) Limited and £2.3m for Crossgar Pallas Limited, acquired from a fellow group company and £362.5m for Sysce France Holding refating 1o 3

new issue of shares.

The directors consider that the value of the i

are by the

The subsidiary undertakings at 3 July 2022 ate listed as fallows:

assets and the expected future performance of the Group.

Country of Percentage
Name of Company incorporation Interest held Operating in:
Trading subsidiary undentakings:
Fresh Direct (UK) Limited Engtand and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Kent Frozen Foods Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Sysco Foods NI Limited Northern Ireland 100.00% United Kingdom
Menigo Foodservics AB Sweden 100,00% Sweden
Medina Quay Meats Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Othar subsidiary undertekings:
Fresh Direct Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Braka Bros Foodservics Limitad England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Sysco France Holding SAS France 54.08% Franco
Victus SAS France 100.00% France
Dormant subsidiary undertakings:
Crosagar Pallas Limited Northem Ireland 100.00% United Kingdom
M&J Seafood Holdings Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdam
Ma&J Seafood Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Thao Group undertokings at 3 July 2022 are listed as follows:
Country of Percentage
Name of Company Incorporation interest held Operating In:
Trading Group undertakings:
Servicestyckama i Johanneshov AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
Fruktserice i Helsingborg AB Sweden 100,00% Sweden
Clafro A8 Swedon 100.00% Sweden
EKO Fagel fisk och mittemeflan AB Sweden 80.00% Sweden
Sysco France SAS France 100.00% France
Los Atsliers du Gout. Franco 100.00% France
Davigel Betgilux SA Botgium 100.00% Belgium
Other Group undertakings:
Brake France Développement France 100.00% Francs
§CI Bianchi Montagut France 100.00% France
S$CI Le Dauphin France 100.00% France
8CI Do Boiseau France 100.00% France
SCI Do Garcelles France 100.00% France
SCI JO Lanjcuan France 100.00% France
During the year the following Group undertakings were either dissolved of ceased to exist:
Stockfiag Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 7 June 2022
Pauleys Produce Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 14 Juns 2022
Freshfoyrs Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdem  Dissalved 14 June 2022
Cucina Fresh Investments Limited England and Wales 49.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 14 June 2022
Cucina Fresh Finance Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 21 June 2022
Cucina French Holdings Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 28 Juna 2022
Fresh Direct Group Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 26 July 2022
Fresh Holdings Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 26 July 2022
Arnotts (Fruit) Limited Northern Ireland 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissoived 26 July 2022

9{o). Investment In associate

The Company’s ing is
consider that the value of the i is

10. Inventorles

by the .

Group
At3July2022 At 4 July 2021

AB, a tading company incorporated in Swedan, The investment hetd of 18% (£0.2m) is in the ordinary share capital of the company and the directors
ing assa!

Company
At 3 Juby 2022 At 4 July 2021

£m £m £m £m

Row materiols and consumables 17.7 15.5 0.6 0.6
Finished goods and goads for resale 228.4 187.7 85.9 73.0
246.1 203.2 88.5 73.8
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11, Trade and other receivables

Group Company
Atdaly2022  Ae Ny 2021 At3suyazz A4 duly 2020
o £m m £m
Trado receivabies ane 696 54 1800
Less: provision tor impal soceivables (6.1) @33) (4.3 258)
Trade raceivables - net 488 263 214 153.2
Amunts owed by Group undertakings - 24 554 7.4
Amounts owed by parant undertakings 8711 1348 3 167
6.3 n2 04
283 247 2247
a5 32 53
78 202 101
(11X} 7499 5243 567.6
£13.5m, £150.7m and £64,1m which accrus interest at 3 rote of 6.0%.
Concentratians of cracit risk with respect to limited dus ta the Group' i d unreloted. Dus 1o tis, is o furthe sk provisi red in excess
of the normal provision for doubitul receivables. Thersfore, the o credit i 8 the tair value of each dlass of receivable. ollateral 2
The overage credit period taken on sales of goods s 37 doys (2021: 36 days). i receivatles.
Aa ot 3 July 2022, Group trad 2m (2021 1d Company vade receivables of £180,8m (2021: £138.5m) wiero flly performing.
As of 3 July 2022, Group irade receivables of £69,3m (2021: £42.8m) and Campany trade receivables of £40.2m (2021: £14, ired. The ageir s of thesa trada roceivables is as falk
Group Gompany
AU3Julyz022  AL4July 2021 At3July2022 A4 duly 2021
em m & £m
Up to 3 months. 519 28 304 133
3106 months 174 130 88 14
693 428 402 147
As o1 3 Jly 2022, rada receivables ol £36im (2021; £43.3m) wero impaired and prvided fo. T armount o the provieion was £36.1m a8 o 3 July 2022 (2021; £43.3m). The indiidually impaired receivaties mairly elata
. It portion of of these vade is as follows:
Group Company
AUSJulyz02z  Até Wiy 2021 Atsaulyz0zz A4 duly 2021
em m &m £m
Up 10 3 months 10 53 05 25
3106 months 21 34 07 04
Over 6 manths 20 6 24 28
381 433 243 28
trado and i than one year od approxi fair value.
ot the trade and i inated in the
Group Gompany
At3uly2022 A4y 2021 At3July2022 A4ty 2020
£m £ em m
Pounds. 6984 031 6243 678
Euros, "5 %6 - -
Swodich Krona 34 502 - -
[1.2) 7458 6243 5678
Group Company
Forthayear  For the year Fortheyear  For tho year
ended 3duly  ended 4 July ended 3 duly  ended 4 Juy
2022 207 2022 202
em £m & £
A4 suly 2021128 June 2020 433 %8 340
Exchangs odjustment ©n . -
Oisposal of business . - .
Provision for recaivables impainment ©9) o9 ©2
f during the ysar as uncoliectible (62) .9) 0.0
ALY Juty 2022 1 Av4 July 2021 361 33 2%} 28
ivables aro imited dus to the Group' and unrelatad. Due to this, management beliava thera i na further credit isk provision required in excess

of @ normal provision for impaired raceivables. Thersfore, the maximum exposure to croit fisk at tho reporting dato is tho fair valus of each dass of receivabla. The Group and Campany does not hold any collotaral as
socuriy.

The other i other receivables d

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
At3Juy02z A4y 2029 At3Julyz022  Ate duty 202V
&m £m £ £m
Cash ot bank and in hand 57 53 109 87
Shon tem - . - -
Cash and cash equivalents a1 July 2022 /4 July 2021 57 533 109 81

its was 0%, Tho affective i i 0.0%).
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13. Trade and other payables

Group Company
At3July2022  A14July 2021 At3July2022  At4 Suly 2023
£m £m £m £m
Trada payables £85.8 549.2 427.3 308
Amounts awed (o parent undertakings 179.4 137.0 152.8 161.2
Amounts owad to Group undertakings . - 30.2 88.9
Amounts owed to related undertokings 99.8 58.6 18.5 12
Other taxas and social security 7.2 208 7.7 5.6
Other payables 48.6 456 1.2 1.9
Accruals 65.5 $8.7 384 328
1,109.3 879.9 675.1 803.1
Amounts owed to Group and parent ngs are bearing, and are repayable on demand,

The averags credit period taken for trade purchases is 49 days (2021: 53 days). For most Suppliers no intarest is charged on the trade payables for the first 60 days from tha date of the invoice and thereafter interest may be.

charged on the oulstanding balances at variaus interest rates.

14. Currentincome tax assets / (liabilides)

Group
At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
£m £m
Corparation tax - UK . -
Corporation tax - oversess 35 4.5
3.5 4.5
At3July2022 A4 July 2021
£m £m
Corporation tax assats. 35 4.9
Corporation tax liabilitiss - 0.4]
A5 4.5
15. Financlal tlabilites - borrowings
Group Company
At3July2022  Atd July 2021 A3 July2022  At4 July 2021
Current €m £m Em £m
Loans owed o parent undertakings 1203 118.8 1203 118.8
Loans owed to Group undertakings - - 1321 1321
Lease Liabilities 44.2 45.9 143 14.5
164.5 165.7 268.7 266.4
Group Company
At 3 July 2022 At 4 Juty 2021 At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
Non-current £m £m Zm £m
Loans owed to parent undertakings 1203 118.8 120.3 118.8
Loans owed to Group undertakings - - 1321 1321
Lease Liabilities 338.1 355.7 165.5 176.1
456.4 475.5 417.9 428.0
Less amounts falling dus within ono year (164.5) (165.7) (286.7) (268.4)
201.9 308.8 151.2 161.6
The carrying amounts of the Group and Company' ings are in the following
Group Company
At 3 July 2022 AL4 Juty 2021 At July 2022 At 4 Juty 2021
£m £m £m £m
Pounds Stesting 140.5 204.2 3058 3165
Eurcs 283.2 236.1 1121 1115
Swedish Krona. 327 35.2 - .
456.4 475.5 417.9 428.0
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15. Financial liabilities - borrowings (continued)

Included within total borrowings as lease obligations as follows: Group Company
At3July2022 A4 Jduly 2021 At3July2022  Atauly 202
£m £m £m £m
Current 44.2 45,9 143 14.5
Non Current 291.9 309.8 151.2 161.6
336.1 355.7 165.5 176.1
The maturity of borrowings is set out in note 16 (a). Tha exposure of the Group and the Company to interest rats changes is as follows:
Group Company
At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021 At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
£m £m £m £m
Borrowings at floating interest rates. 1203 116.8 252.4 2519
Fixed rats borrowings maturing:
- within one year 44,2 459 14.3 14,5
- one to five years. 157.6 136.3 54.4 48,5
- over five years 134.2 1735 86.8 1131
456.4 4755 417.9 428.0
The effective interest rates at date of the statement of financial position were as follows:
Group Company
At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021 At 3 July 2022 At 4 uly 2021
Loans owed to parent undertakings 85% 6.5% 6.5% 6.5%
Loans owed 1o Group undertakings 0.0% 0.0% 6.0% 6.0%
Bank Loans 0.0% 0.5% 0.0% 0.0%

18. Financial instruments
16 (a) Financial Instruments - narrative disclosure

Disclosures in raspect of the Group's financial risks are set out below. Additional disclosuras are set out in the Accounting Policies (on pages 17 to 22) and numerical disclosures in respect of financial instruments are st out
in note 16(b), 16(c) and 16(d). .

Flnancial risk management
Financlal risk factors
The Group has operations in the UK, the Reputdic of Ireland, Franca and Sweden and has debt financing which exposes it to s variety of financial risks that indlude the effects of changes in debt markst prices, foreign cumency

exchange rotes, credit risks, commadity prics risks, liquidity and interest rates. The Group has in place a risk monagement programme that saeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using
foreign currency debt to hedge overseas investments in subsidiaries, using forward exchange contracts for inventory purchases and fuel commodity swaps 1o hedge againet the risk of the change in the price of diesel.

The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited hova the responsibility for estting the risk policies, in iance with Sysco C: o risk policies, applied by the Broke Bros Limited Group of
companies. The policies are implemented by tha cantral Group treasury department that receives regutar reports from the operating companies to enable prompt identification of financial rigks so that the appropriate actions.
may be taken,

{?) Forvign currency exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks primarily with respect to the Euro and Swedish Krona although exposure to the Swedish Krona is not considered material. The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose not assats aro exposed 1o foreign currency translation risk.

The Group's operations in the UK and Sweden have inventory purchases denominated in currencies other than their functional currency, such as the Eurc and Danish Krone. Thess inventory purchases give rise to foreign
currency exposure betweon the functional currency of each entity and thess cumencies. The Group enters into foreign cumrency forward swap contracts to sel) the applicable entity's functional currency and buy currencies
matching the inventory purchase, which oporate as cash flow hedges of the Group's foreign Y i inventory

(@) Intarest rato risk
Tho Group has both interest bearing assats and intarest bearing lial

o8, Interest cato risk is not considered materin! for the Group,

(@) Crodit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, as well as credit expasures to Customers, including i i and i i For
banks, independently rated parties within the band 'A’ rating are used for the main Group banking requirements, and wherever possible for subsidiary day to day opersting requirements, For Custamers, risk control assesses
the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, pas) experience and other factors. Individual risk limits ore set based on intemal or extemal ratings. The Group has implemented policies that require
appropriate credit checks on potential Customers bafore sales commence,

The table below shows the credit rating and balance of the major bank counterparties at the dato of the statement of financial position, A full analysis of cash at bank and short term deposits is included in note 16(d) to the
financial statements.

At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
Group Balance Batance
Counterparty Rating £m Rating £m
Bank A A - A -
Bank B A 2.1 A 133
Bank C AA- 0.0 AA- -
Bank D A+ 14.0 A+ 128
Bank € A 47 A 38
Bank F A+ 3.0 A+ -
Bank G A+ 13.8 A+ 18.2
Bank H B8BB- 0.5 BBB- 27
Bank| 88B 1.3 888 0.6
Bank K 888 . A 27
Bank N A- - 688+ -
Bank O . 888- - :1:1:) .
Bank P AA- 0.6 Al 0.1
Bank @ A 1.8 AA- 1.8
Bank R AA- 0.3 Al 0.3
Bank S A- 1.5

5.7 83.3
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16. Financlal instruments (continued}

18 (a) Financial - narrative

At July 2022 At 4 July 2021
Company Batance Balance
Counterparty Rating €m Rating £m
Bank B8 A 10.9 A 8.7

10.9 8.7

Management does not expect any losses from non-per by these
(iv) Liquidity risk

The Group's funding is derived from borrawings and amounts funded from parent and Group undertakings that are designed to ensure the Group has sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions, The
Group also has access to intercompany funding from parent eniities, whom have access 1o an sxternal Revalving Credit Facility of $US3000m amangst other facilities, The Group also participates in a cash poofing
arrangement with other Sysco Group entities providing additionaf sources of focal fiquidity 88 and when required. .

{v) Commadiy prica risk
The Group is exposed to commadity prics risk primarily with respect to diesel purchases. The Group has in place 3 fisk management programme that seks to limit the adverse effects on the financial perfarmance of the Group
by using diese fue! commodity swaps to hedge against future price changes. During the period the Group entered into @ number of fuel commodity swaps 1o hedge against the risk of the change in the prica of diese on
anticipated future purchases (see noto 16(c) for further details).

Maturity of financlal llabilides

The table betow analyses the Group and Company's financial liabilities into retevant maturity Groupings based an the remaining pariod at the dats cf the statement of financial position to the contract maturity dats, The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flova.

Less than Between one Between two Over five
one year and two years  and five years years
Group £m £m £m €m
Borrowings - indluding interest payments 1203 - - B
Lease Obligations 538 413 108.9 203.8
Trads and other payables excluding statutory liabilites - - - -
As at 3 July 2022 174.1 4.3 108.1 203.8
Less than Between one. Between two Over five
one year and two years and five years years.
Group £m £m £m Em
Borrawings - including interest payments 118.8 - - -
Lease Obligations. 55.0 47.8 100.0 227.4
Trads and other payables excluding statutory liabifities - - - -
As 8t 4 July 2021 1748 47.8 100.0 227.4
Less than Between one Between two Over five
one year and two years  and five years years
Company £m £m £m £m
Borrowings - including intarest payments 2524 . . -
Lease Obligations 19.2 149 az 135.8
Trada and other payables excluding statutory liabilities, - - - -
Asat) Jull 2022 271.8 14.9 41.7 135.8
Less than Between ane Between two Over five
one year and two yoars and five years years
Lompany £m
Borrowings - including interest payments. 251.9 - - -
Leasa Obligations 19.9 18.4 40.7 148.1
Trade ond other payables excluding statutory finbilities - - - -
As at 4 July 2021 s 18.4 40.7 148,10
Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when ing capital are to the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide ratums for shareholders and to maintain an eptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital. These objectives are managed at the ultimate UK Group level, Cucina Lux Investments Limited, rather than at a tower Group level,

The overall debt and equity structure of the Company is under the control of the ultimate parent company, Sysco Corporation, There ars no exteral capital requirements on the Company. Further details of the share capital
of the Company can be found in nots 20 of the financial statements,

16 {b) Financial instruments - by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been spplied to the line itams below,

At3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021

Loans and Loans and

recelvables receivables

Group £m £m

Assets as per statement of financlal position

Trade and other recsivables 849.7 729.7

Derivative finandial instruments 8.2 -
53.7 83.3
908.8 793.0
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16. Financlal instruments (continued)

18 (b) Financial - by category
At 3 July 2022 At 4ty 2021
Liabilites
at fair value 81 fair value
through the  Other financial through the  Other financiat
profit and loss liabilities Total profit and loss liabilities Total
Group £&m £m &m £m £m £m
Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Financial liabilites - borrowings - 456.4 456.4 - 4755 475.5
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 0.1 0.1
Trade and other paysbles excluding statutory i ies - 1,082.4 1,082.4 - 850.1 850.1
- 1.538.5 1,538.5 - 1,325.7 1.325.7
At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
Loans and Loans and
receivables roceivables
Company £m £m
Assets as per statement of financial position
Trade and other receivables 810.% 557.7
Derivative financial instuments. 4.2 -
Cagh and cash equivalents 10.9 8.7
626.0 566.4
At 3 July 2022 At 4 Juy 2021
Liabilities Liabilities
at fair value at fair value
through the  Other financial through the  Other financial
profit and loss liabilites Total profit and loss. liabilities Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
Llabilitles as per statement of financial position
Financial liabilities - borrowings. - 4178 417.9 . 428.0 4280
Derivative finandal instruments. - - - - - -
Trade and other payables excluding statutory | es - 6674 667.4 - 597.5 597.5
- 1,085.3 1,085.3 - 1.025.5 1,025.5
16 (c). Financlal .
Fair value estimation
The table below analyses finandal instruments carried ot fair value, by vatuation methad. The different levets have been defined as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies (level 1).
- Inputs other than quated prices included within level 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived fram prices) (Javal 2).
- inputs for the assat or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservabie inputs) (level 3).
The fallowing tabls presents the Group and Company's assets and lisbilities that are measured at fair value at 3 July 2022:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group £m &m £m £m
Asset
Forward foreign currency contracts - 0.4 - 0.4
Cash flow hedges 5.8 - 5.8
. 6.2 - 8.2
Company
Asset
Cash flow hedges 4.2 - 4.2
- 4.2 - 42
The folloving table presants the Group and Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair valus at 4 July 2021;
Levet 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group Em £m £m £m
Asset
Cash flow hedges 0.1 - 0.1
Uability
Forward foreign currency contracts - (0.1) - 0.1}

Company

Liabilides
Cash flow hedges -
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186. Financial instruments (continued)

16 (c). Financia) -

The Group and Company does not have any finandal instruments that are traded in active marksts,

For all other financial instruments fair value is determined by using valuation tachniques, Valuation tod:ruques include net present value techniques, the discounted cash flow mathod, comparison to similar instruments for
hei

which market observable prices exist, and valuation models. If all significant inputs required to fair vatue an isincluded in lavel 2, If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Carrying values of derivative financial instruments

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiliies
At3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
Group Em Em E£m £m
Forward foreign currency contracts 0.4 . - (0.1}
Cash flow hedges 5.8 - 0.1 -
Total current portion 6.2 - 0.1 ©.1)
Assets Liabilides Assets Liabilities
At July 2022 At 4 July 2021
Company £m £m £m
Cash flow hedges 42 . . .
Total current portion 4.2 - - -

Falir values of non-derivative flnancial assets and liabilltes

Whero market values are not available, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities have baen calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing intorest rates and by applying year end exchange rates.
The book value of short term borrowings is appreximats to fair valus.

Set out below are numerical disclosures in respect of the Group's financial instruments.

At 3 July 2022 At 4 Suly 2021

Book value Falr vatue Baok value Fair volue

Group £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group's operations:

Short term financiat lisbilities and current portion of lang term borowings (164.5) (164.5) (185.7) (165.7)

Other long term borrawings (291.9) (291.9) (309.8) (309.8)

Trade and other payables (1,309.3) 1,100.3) (879.9) (878.9)

Trads and other recaivables 849.7 849.7 7207 7287

Cash and cash equivalents 5.7 53.7 833 63.3

Retirement benafit obligations (38.2) (38.2) (84.2) (84.2)

The book values of short<term bank deposits, loans and other bomowings with @ maturity of lass than one ysar are sssumed to approximats to their fair values. In the case of bank loans and other barrowings dus in more than
one year the fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cosh flows at the cument estimated markst interest rate available to the Group for similar finandial
instuments.

The book values of trada and ather receivables, trade and other payables, cash and cash equn and ret benefit obligations are assumed to J to their fair values.

Other tair values shown above have been estimated using valuation method level 3 by discounting cash flows at pravailing interest rates.

Company

At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
Book value Fair value Book value Fair valus
£m £m £m
Primary financial insttuments held or issued to finance the Group's operations:
Short term financia! fiabilities and current portion of fong term borrawings (266.7) (266.7) (266.4) {266.9)
Other long term borrowings. (151.2) (151.2) (181.6) (181,6)
Trada and other payablos (875.1) 675.1) (603.1) {603.1)
Trade and other roceivables. 810.9 610.8 557.7 557.7
Cash and cash equivalents 10.9 10.8 8.7 87
Retirement benefit asset / (obligations) 42 42 (30.3) (30,3)

Borrowing facilities

The Group headed by Brake Bros Limited has no undravn committed borrowing facilities available at 3 July 2022 (2021: £nil )

18, Financial instruments (continued)

16 {d). Credit quality of financia) assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to our Group risk profile indication based upon information provided by our extemal credit agendies:

Group
At3 July 2022

Compa
At 3 July 2022

ny
At 4 July 2001

A1 4 July 2021
£m £m £m £m
Trade recelvables
Low rigk 287.2 236.8 180.9 1385
Medium risk 32.6 334 - .
High risk 38.4 133 - -
Tota) rads receivables 386.2 283.5 180.9 1385
Thesa categories of risk reflect the relative credit rigk attributable ta our trada receivables,
Group Company
At 2 July 2022 At 4 July 2021 At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and short term deposits.
Ape 0.9 22 - .
A+ 30.8 31.0 - .
A 187 26.8 10.9 87
A 15 - - -
BBB+ - - - -
BBB- 0.5 27 - .
888 1.3 0.8 - -
53.7 63.3 10.9 B.7

Page 34



st ooy

£ v oz & £0e 1202 A v Y
SR T
189K 8 Uy pred BUORNQLILOD
ve -
7o - zo
L S0 20
- 6z @0} - wsugsnipe aBuepx3
s zeor oz e 0202 oun g2 v
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 Wawapay
1202 oz uspang oaunry »n
Are v popu A0r y popua
163k o1 104 seok o 403
Kueduioy dnoss oy anos
15MOJ(0) SE SEM POHIM JOHd IUf U] UOREDIIGD 14IIQ WA OUE U] TUIWAOW DL
B3 1) ToT AT T
o) 5 U5 SUE eneEY
W 1204 o1 u) pied suopnauauod
- 1503 2318 0ug
. . 1909 0008 wound
s0 - w0 ‘Sosuare ngoTSMILY
0 90 0 @RUIdXD 1SS O]
- (s - wRugsnipe oBuTS
o oeze cac 1zez Ainr v v
w3 i Wy =] w5 TURTIRGT )
oz oz uapamg sauny un
Agar ¢ papua Ainr ¢ papus
aeak ap 04 avak ap a0y
Kuzduog dnasp oy dnoss.
Moy £ £) 123K 31 BUMRP LORBBIIZO £ REES) 1AL IUIWRIADI 91D U IUILIFACW DL
T 13 G 3 E )
oD Treen (G2 Tween Wt Vo 18 SRR 753
- - 655 vy Suogeiyo papunyun jo onjen 1weRasg
28 568 e 5581 ‘suogesiiqe pOPLN; Jo oneA 1uaBAId
w3 w3y w3 w3
Lz0zAinr viy 220z Ar Ray szozdinr vay  zzozdinr o3y
Auoduog dnasg
MOJ3Q 100 195 3¢ SuRK 153uaq PIULIP 0 UORITEd [EUEU §0 UIWIIELS 3P U) PAS(UBOII SIUNOWE BY).
‘9paiB pue uopmod seekojduwia " *Aimjes pua soy
popun auy LMOL. SRRy US LEdag K e s " 40; ‘Odues3 U
os o ese oy o suorued

uomuad Armuausmpidns) uext

11 04 'S0340KUR PIULIES Uiewsd 104 e 1yunA POUYIP PIUIVU UR BIA SIS WIOUITDZ 11| i PIPaid OIE UIPIMS Ut 999K0dUID SANOID OU) (SIKOKILID PIUEIE (BLompus
o Aieprans 9y 'wapams ul

L1 90 i SDUZRIOZOE U PIPAGID OIE SIDWIBUELE 94 {0 ALUO[EW I SIPS OIS UOTIRLILOD PIUYIP PUE YLISY PRUIP L S3AOKILD ISP ‘Gy UTIPO0 OBriaRy AUE

Ul UOUS ] 10UTSIS ANDIS Ea01 O G POLIOISUR OB SRR 0L

10 smquiap SR L : au 190w o3 Bursn 51 dnoID aul 1 Saurey2 uorsuod o3aKbom BulkiEnb 018 F10Z KIENUB | UD PILOHD 0/ SUBY UKSUa BUoSIag dnorD) PRNQ Usard Ay ()

28U Jo) SUDIQUUOS SyaAGKD YN L ‘BIRAORS. 104 %¢ 2w
KGUSIN SEIIG 01 0 SI0GUPLAXB 10} S91EI UORNILIUE) LMK Bl UOISUS 19U0S13g ANOID SSXTIG Ol 01U PI[OILG-0ING QUL BURSIG (18 U 10T UPISH LE UO PIRO UCl DB 950WDINg ASUoW SeATIE Su ()
femusg 3 (ebo- “aseBourw 4948 Giyn S oD 10) 34 O PUD BQUIAI o

1095 10 patse 10} pur 10) % PUC S15qUIBLY 40) Are[es oEUOSUad ‘910, uopnqiauod o 10}

it porsains 13 Ao AR Moo T SHNS 8 ot 1 DU er 6 104h s uoEhiod SooKasom BUPErs o 41 e SYDE Ity | U6 HOLID Sk uorsun 1E0eb1od S SanEsE o ()
o0 s Uy 942 GRS 9L Ui PAIEROSIE Y3 P ¥ 14 "0wy2s G101 10 OIYO.0 044 GO IUEITP Y
“dnoI9 34 2 Wuaurdinbe pue juepd 2 f 023 4202) wO'023 1o . : rsusg Aseies jeuiy Soxe8
wousinel Aues e ¢ ousg (59 9Be 10 9 9B KEORIA) SBE 1OHRIRG) j£UKOU 18 IAUBINSI 4o SuOBUD (ENUE PIUYIP G} PIRGLS SIE QU] OUSIDD SR FPUN
“Sousq o kep 4q poambes srsng
apusepu Ue pon s o o o s 1 oIS Ko 1 PoROcL i TG s P S0 YT 100 Tt Aot o SR 1o e LTS b porrT 5t o ot
uop

uorsuBd 153107 POUITP PIPUN; @ 5| OUIBDS GUL GIEP I O LUFNBOSANS SIIUPK 01 BUINSIIE 918 GISIUDA SN ON "EUGE #9AUEI9Q LE 18 S9RA0iduD Buns of poTOP STM SWRPS uOBUS KIEIES feuid SoXeig oL Y

woo; S0
21 AQ P10s0do 618 GOUOS UDEUI ) BYL "GINIZU PIPUNN U |0 012 SUOREBIRD DSSLG PUB UK 153L0Q PIULP € J0 DYZILD G 1901 (YA NS [ULKoRL 150
uj "UOTIPPO u) “AUOWO Gl KQ PaND:odo BB SOLWS UORURM Gy "SPUN PAIPISIUILIAE SOISNA B1SIEdaS Uy PIow BUISQ SIIUSLOS (9 10 SIVSSD 9us 'SSKORILS Y S 10} SRR UOL

019 o401 kuediioo Aiepisans.
iN015) 0y UIPawS puE GBI
ruInu @ s3jesedo do:D By,

$uoneB|qo / S1955e JYIUIQ JUILRINAY "L}
SIUGWAENS [BIDUBUY DY} O) 510N
2202 AIn © papus Jeak ayy Jog

SIaWaleIS |R1auRul PUR Lodas |eRUUY.

pajwiT soig axelg



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
Forthe year ended 3 July 2022

Notes 1o the financial statements

17. Retirement benefit assets / obligations (continued)

The amounts recognised in ome. d for defined benefit plans are et out below:
Group Total Group Company
For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 3 July
uk France Sweden 2022 2022
Retirement em em £m em em
Operating cost
Service costs’
Current servics cost - 15 10 25 B
- Admirisirative experses 03 - - 0.3 0.3
Totat operating casta 03 15 1.0 28 03
Financing cost
Interest expense o5 0.1 05 12 058
Total o8 18 18 a0 08
Remeosurements recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in i e ©1) “n - (22) 3
- gains from changes in financial assumptions 63.8) 8.2 58 aze) (63.8)
- experience gains 24 - - 24 24
- return on sch 0.9 Q.1 0. m7 409
Total amount recognised in income (20.6) (54 ©7) 0s.7) 20.6)
Group Tot) Grawp Company
For the year For the year
anded 4 July ended 4 July
K France Swoden 2021 2021
Retirement benefit obligations & Em &m m £m
Operating cost
Senico coste:
- Current service cost - 14 .0 24 -
ini 02 - - 02 02
Total operating costs 02 14 10 28 02
Financing cost
Interest expense 07 02 L1 18 o7
ot Income 08 16 15 41 09

08 ot 08
-6 . . (120}
- experience gaine (2) - - a2
03 . . 03
Totat In ather (5.0) 08 o1 (40) (150)
The amounts recognised In the Income statement for defincd contribution plans are set out below:
Group Company
Fortheyesr  For the yeor Fortheyear  For the year
ended 3Juty  andod 4 July ended 3July  ended 4 ly
2022 2021 022 2021
m & &n im
o 22 134 20 140
Reporting at 3 July 2022
™ y dafined gati by adjusting the results of the fatost trenniaf funding valuation at § April 2018 to the statement of financiaf position dats, taking account of oxparionce
ovar the period sinca 5 Agil 2019, changes in , i the financia and d i Tho pr ta igotion i d using the projectod wnit crodit
method, Tho principal inancia! il the year ended 3 July 2022 are sat out below.
At3 suly 2022 At 4ty 2021
% . %
UK assumptions:
Rate of increaca in pensions in payment and detered pentions 275 280
Oiscount rate 365 180
280 285
210 215
France assumptions
Discount rato 328 075
Salary increasa 275 235
Inflation 210 170
‘Sweden assumptians:
i 375 200
340 250
tnftation 270 180
Mortaliy rate UK assumptions:
y i based on erienca of Scheme d 2 soci ysis of th Vp, and llow far i ity ratee.
i i years of a pensioner on the date financial pasition s as fellows:
At3 duly 2022 Ata hly 2021
Malo 26 215
Femate 238 »n7
ectancy in years of a pensioner retiing at
At3 July 2022 A4y 2021
Hate 220 28
Femala 247 26

Page 36



Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 3 July 2022

Notes to the financial statements

17. benefit assets /

Sensitivity to key sssumptions

The key assumptions used for IAS 19 are: discount rate, inflation and mortality. If different assumptions were used in the UK, this cauld have a material effect on the results disclosed, The sensitivity of the retirement benefit

obligation to these assumptions is as follows.

- Folloving a 0.2% pa decrease in the discount rate the net asset viould decrease by £5.9m from £4.2m to a net deficit of £1.7m.

- Following a 1 year increasa in life expectancy the net asset would decrease by £6.8m from £4.2m to a nat deficit of £2.6m.

The sensitivity information shown abova has been prapared using the same mothod as adopted when adjusting the resuits of the latest funding vaiuation (o the balance sheot date. This is the same approach as has been

adopted in previous periods.

Analysis of movement in present value of retirement benefit obligations during the year is as follows:

Group Total Group Company
France Sweden For the year For the year
UK (funded (unfunded (unfunded ended 3 July ended 3 July
2022 2022
£m £m Em £m €m
At 4 July 2021 261.2 1.9 32.0 3143 261.2
Exchange adjustment - (0.1) ©.3) (0.4) -
Interest expense 4.8 01 0.6 56 4.9
Remoasuroments:
- (gains) / tosses from changes in demographic assumptions (0.1) {4.9) - (4.2) ©.1)
- (gains) from changes in financiol assumptions (63.8) (3.2) (5.8) 2.6) (63.8
- experience (gains) 24 - - 24 24
Contributiens paid by employer - (0.6) (©.8) (1.4} .
Current sarvice cost - 1.5 1.0 z5 -
Benefits paid (9.1) . . (9.1) (8.1}
At3 July 2022 195.5 15.5 26.9 2371 195.5
Analysls of movement in present value of retirement benefit obligations during the prior periad is as follows:
Group Total Group Campany
Sweden For the year For the year
UK (tunded France (unfunded {unfunded ended 4 July ended 4 July
igati ligati igati 2021 2021
£m £m £m £m £m
At 28 June 2020 282.2 23 320 3365 282.2
Exchange odjustment - 1.2) {0.9) (29) -
Interest expense 4.4 0.2 05 5.1 4.4
Remeasurements:
- (gains) / losses from changes in demogrophic assumptions. 0.1) 0.9 0.1 [X] ©.1)
- goins from changes in financial assumptions. (120) - . 120) (12.0)
- experience (gains) 3.2) - - 3.2) (3.2)
Contributions paid by employer - .7 ©.7) (2.4) -
Current service (income) / cost - 1.4 1.0 24 -
Benafits paid (10.1) - - (10.1) {10.1)
At4 July 2021 261.2 219 320 314.3 251.2
Analysis of movement in fair value of scheme assets during the year is as follows:
Group Company
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 Juy ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £&m £m
At 4 July 2021 / 28 June 2020 2309 2333 2309 2333
Interest incoms on schame assets 44 37 44 a7
Remaansurements: - -
- gains / {lossas) on teturn on schems assols (40.9) {0.3) (40.9) 0.3)
Administative expenses ©.3) 0.2) 0.3) 0.2)
Contriibutions paid by employer 147 4.5 147 4.5
Benefits paid ©.1) (10.1) (8.1) (10.1)
At3 July 20227 At 4 July 2021 188.7 230.8 188.7 2308
The Plan assats ara investad in the following asset classes:
Group and company Group snd company

For the year Of which not
ended 3 July quoted in an
2022 active market

Forthayear  Of which not
ended 4 July  quotedinan
2021 active market

£m £m £m £m
Equities. 194 18.0 208 176
Property 123 123 10.0 10.0
Macro orientated 59 - 23 -
Multi strategy - - - -
Credit / Corporats honds. 147 - 138 -
Government bonds. 83.8 - 93.7 -
Derivatives (21.2) (20.2) 1.8 25
Cash and cash equivalents 74.8 - 88.2 -
At 3 July 2022/ At 4 July 2021 198.7 10.1 230.9 30.1
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17. Retirement beneflt assets / obligations (continued)
Further details on the Brakes Final Salory Pension Scheme

Profie of the schema

efcs pensicriers. Braadly, about 60% of i ibutable to deferred pensi cument pensionars.
The tima unt benefit payments are made. For tha schem s & whole, the duation s araund 17 yaars reflecing the appraximata splt of the dafined bensfit obligatian
betwoen (durstian of 12 years).

The toble below illustrates the profile of projected Ature benefit payments from the scheme.

bsie

Lessthan  Betwssnone  Botwoontwo Over

At July 2022 onoyeas _end two years __and five yoars five yoarn

Pension benafits 2% 2% &% 50%
At uly 2021

2% 2% &% 0%

illion, The Company s
. September 2027,
ding wil bo reviewod, The Company pays conuibutions of £0.3 million p.a. in respact of the axpensos of
ing the year ending on 30 June 2023,

. A tatal

Risks associaled Wit tha schems
sites are calcutated using 3 discount rate set with referanca to corparate bond yields: if assets undemerlorm tris yied, his wil creata a defiit.

Asset volatilty

The Scherme blds o irifant proporian ofgroth st (=ies ighield onds,propery and acrabves) whin, rough opecies i outgeriom
the lang-term, y
given the Schamo's long-teim abjoctiven.

Changes in bond yields A i placed it .__.s.a: dally of
by an increasa In the value of tha Scheme's i assats. Tho Scheme' iy is (o rats risk although
ot intendod o be procisely hedged compared to the accouting volus of liales, moaning tha changes in fure expected inlrest rales may oh
the accourting defict.

Infiaion risk Asignificant proportion of the Scheme's igas tinked to infl d higher inflation wi igher iabilies { inmost
cases, y slaco to don), although this vill ba partially ¥ an increasa in
the valus of the [ e ifation rg itis ot i bo
precisely o i i changa i

Life oxpectancy The majority of the schems's abligations aro to provide benefis for the lfe of the member, tasultin anir intne
iabilties.

T Gouy 14 Trutoes v acron o o eatag o sckucing vastmard ik s s whon pgecpiate. T e dhorlfcaton f growth ssets o rucucs vttty s on sssrlabiy mateing pelcy wich
9 in asseta i line with morket

ikt vt o oo
On 26 October 2018 the High Count of Justica in the United Kingdom iesued a ruling requiring the squalisation of benefits payable in respect of Guaranised Minimum Pension benefits for males. For both the Group and the
Gompany tha impact of this rling wil be o increase the defined benefit obligation of the Brakes Final Salary Pansian Scheme. Curent esimates by the indopendem achary estmate th impaci of he Guarantosd Minimum
Fonsion uplit o be immataria) for Broks Bros Limitod.

1m gain) wera recogrised in the period and included in the consalidated statement of camerehensive expensa / income, The cumulative amount of acwarisl

gaing of £33.5m (yoar ended 4 July 2021
(4.4uly 2021 £65.5m),

Tho actudt loss on plun agsets vas £40.6m (2021: £0.3m loss),

18, Provisions

Group Company

Formeyear  For the year Formeyear  Fartho year

ended3uly  ended ¢ Sty ended3uly  ended 4 Ay

2022 2021 022 202

Property and ciher provisions tm £ em &m
A4 July 2021 /28 June 2020 36 4 648 %3
Eom-out concideratian on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 2) 52 - 52 -
Charged / erexitod) to the incame statament during the year 52 21 B .
Provisions for property, ptant and equipment additions during the year 25 X 1.4

Uilived during the yoar ©s) (35) 0.7) ©9)
A3 July 2022 1 At4 duly 2021 451 s 329 268
Non-current s 242 07 248
Current 23 34 12 22
454 76 329 28

At 3 July 2022 thera wer provisions relating to onerous contracts amounting (o £5.4m (2021: £4.4m) and dilapidation provisions smounting to £35.5m (2021: £32.3m). Provisions for dilapidations primarily rapresant
abligations to reinstate property to its ariginal condition ot the end of the leass term. Easn-cut consideration in respact of the acquisitions of Eko Fisk and Medina were atso included. Payment of this contideration is
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19. Deferred tax

The fellowing are the major deferred tax assats and liabilities recognised by tha Group and mavements thereon during the curent and prior year:

Property, plant
Retirement Capital and equipment
benefit . allowances timing Customner lists tair value  Other temporary

obligatons  Cash flow hedge differences Tax losses and brands adjustments differences. Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 28 June 2020 185 (0.1} 26.0 25 @.1) {1.1) 24 411
Exchangs adjustment 0.8) 0.1 06 (0.4) 0.3)
Credited / (charged) to other comprehensive income in the year 28) (2.8)
Credited / (charged) to the income statement in the year (0.3} 0.2) 17.5 107.4 1.4 0.3 126.1
At 4 Juty 2021 148 (0.2) 44.1 109.9 67 {1.1) 23 164.1
Exchangs adjustment (0.2) ©.1) 0.3 0.1 0.1
Other movements .ty (1.6) (0.2) 29)
Credited / (charged) to other comprahensive income in the year (5.9) (0.8) 6.7)
Credited / (charged) to the incoms statement in the year (4.1) 0.1 9.4 1.5 02 1.4) 5.7
As at3 July 2022 4.6 {1.0) 441 118.5 (5.8) {0.9) 0.8 160.3

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are anly offset where there is a legally enforceable right of affset and there is an intention to settle the balances nst. The fullowing is the analysis of tha deferred tax balances for the Group

tafter offset) for financial reporting purposes.

At 3 July 2022 At 4 July 2021

£m £m

Deferred tax assets 168.1 171.0
Deferred tax liaklities 7.8) (6.9)
160.3 184.3

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Company and movements thereon during the curent and prior year.

Property, plant
Rotirement Capital and equipment
benefit allowances timing Customer lists fair vatue  Other temporary

obligations Cash flow hedge differences Tax losses. and bronds odjustments differences Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 28 June 2020 93 0.2 303 20 (0.2) ©.n 1.4 423
Tax chargs on retirement bensfit obligations taken directly to other
comprehensive income (2.8) - - - - - - (28)
Tax credit on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive
income 0.2) - - - - . 0.2)
Credited / (charged) to ths incoms statemant in the ysar 0.8) - 145 11.2 - - - 248
At 4 July 2021 5.7 - 448 13.2 ©.2) 0.7) 1.4 64.2
Tax charge on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other
comprehensive incame 3.8} 3.9)
Tax chargs an cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive
income 0.8) (0.8)
Other movements (1.1) (1.1)
Crodited / (charged) to the incoma statement in the year {2.6) {1.5) {0:2) 0.1 (4.2)
As ot 3 July 2022 (0.8) (0.8) 4.3 1.8 0.1) §0.7) 14 54.2

Doterred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and on temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assats, to the extent that it is cansidared probable, based on internal torecasts, that these assets will be
racoverad, There ora unrecognised deferred tox ossets in respect of unutilised tax losses in the UK amounting to £0.0m (2021: £0.0m). There is no expiry date for thesa losses,

20, Share capital

A3 July2022  At4 July 2021
Group and Company £m £m
Authorised
54,000,000 (2021: $4,000.000) ordinary shares of 10p 54 5.4
Ordinary shares
tssued and fully paid paid ot 10p each £m £m
AtJ July 20221 At 4 July 2021 53.776.541 5.4 5.4
21. Share premium
At3July 2022 At 4 July 202t
Group and Company £m £m
At 4 July 2021 / 28 June 2020 288.6 30.8
Issued during the period 0.0 578
At July 2022 /At4 Ju|¥‘ 2021 288.8 288.6
22. Reserves
Other reserves:
Business
comb, under Other Capital Total other Retained
Hedging  common control reserves contribution reserves eamings Total
Group - attributable to owners of the parent Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 4 July 2021 03 (76.5) 267 4173 367.8 4.2) 363.6
Impact of adoption of {FRS 16 - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain - - - - - as 335
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain - - - - - 5.9 58)
Cash flow hedges - losses arising in the year 6.2 - - - 6.2 - 6.2
Taxation on cash flow hedges (0.8) - - - (0.8) - 0.8)
Long term incentive plan charge - . B - - (1.3) (1.3)
Currency translation differences . - 2.8) - (2.8) . (2.8)
Loss) for the year - - - - - (54.3) (54.3)
As at 3 July 2022 8.7 (76.5) 23.9 417.3 370.4 {32.2) 338.2
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22. Reserves (continued)

Other reserves:

Business
comb, under Other Capital Total other Retained
Hedging comman control reserves contribution reserves earnings Total
Group - attributable to owners of the parent Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 28 June 2020 (1.2) (76.5) 243 417.3 3639 783 442.2
Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 - . B - - 0.2) ©0.2)
Retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain - - - - - 14.4 14.1
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain - - - - - 28 (28
Cash flow hedges - losses arising in the year 1.6 - - - 1.6 - 1.6
Taxation on cash flows hedges ©.1) - - - 0.1) - ©.1)
Long term incentive plan charge - B - - - .2) (1.2)
Currency translation differences. - - 24 - 24 - 24
{Loss) tor the year - - - - - {92.4) 82.4
At 4 July 2021 0.3 (76.5) 26.7 4173 367.8 (4.2) 363.6
Included within othar reserves are cumidative exchange gains of £28.1m (2021: £25.7m) and gains on the fair valus of cash flow hedges of £1,0m {2021: £1.0m).
Other reserves:
Capital Total other Retained

Hedging Other contribution reserves sarnings Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 4 July 2021 0.2 (18.9) 446.5 4278 811 508.9
Peafit for the year - - - - 10.6 10.6
Long term incentive plan charge - - - - 0.6) (0.6)
Capital contribution received - - - - - -
Cash flow hedges - profits arising in the year a1 - - 41 - 4.1
Taxation on cash flow hedges 0.8) - - (0.8) - (0.8)
Retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain R . . - 2.6 20.6
Taxation on retirement bensfit obligation actuarial gain - - - - {3.9) (3.9)
As at3 July 2022 3.5 (18.9) 448.5 a1 107.8 538.9

QOther reserves:
Copital Total other Retainad

Hodging Other contribution reserves earnings Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 28 June 2020 (1.0) (18.9) 408.5 389.6 166.6 556.2
(Loss) for the year - - . . (97.6) (97.6)
Long term incentive plan charge - . - - ©.2) (0.2)
Arising on Business Combinations under common contral - - 370 370 - 370
Cash flow hedges - (losses) arising in tha year 1.4 - - 1.4 - 1.4
Toxation an cash flow hedges ©.2) - - (0.2} - (0.2)
Retiremant benefit obligation actuarial gain . - - - 151 15,4
Taxation on tstisemant benafit obligatien actuarial gain - - L - (2.8) (2.8)
At 4 July 2021 0.2 (18.9) 4485 427.8 81.1 508.8

Other reserves include a credit of £10.8 m (2021: £10,8m) in respect of the differences between the nominal value and tair value of shares issued for the acquisition of subsidiary companies and losses of £28.6m (2021
£26.6m) in respact of the differences between the fair value and book value of assets hived up from a subsidiary undertaking. Also included within other reserves are cumulativa exchange tosses of £0,2 m (2021: £0.2m).

23. Cash generated from operations

Reconciliation of profit befare taxation to cash generated from operations

Group Company

For the year For the year For the year For the year

ended 3 July ended 4 July ended 3 July onded 4 July

2022 2021 2022 2021

£m £m £m £m

(Loss) / Profit betore taxation 57.2) (217.8) 14.0 (127.6)

Adjustments for:

- Financs income 13.2) (13.5) (13.9) (18.8}
- Finance costs. 25.8 25 283 215
Depreciation charges 108.8 81.8 4.4 40.5
isation and i i of i 8.3 18.9 0.1 0.1
Retirement benefit contributions paid (16.1) 6.9) 14 (4.5)
Loss on sale of praperty, plant ond equipment 2.9) 43 (0.6) 0.2)
Decreaso / (Increase) in inventories (az3) {1.3) {12.8) 22
Decreasa / (Increase) in trade and other receivables (67.4) (212.0) (140.3) (68.3)
Decrease) / increasa in trade and other payables 13723 278.4 185.9 2065
Cash generated from operations 80.1 (33.6) 98.2 51.3
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24. Acquisition of buslnesses

On the 1 September 2021, the Brakes Group acquired 100% of the issued shars capita) of Medina Quay Meats Limited in the UK Medina is 3 foodservice business with a strong independent customer base, which

compliments the UK Spediality businesses.
The provisional amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liatilities assumad are set oul in the table below:
Provislonal fair

values
£m
Identifiable intangible assats 8.5
Property, plant and equipment 35
Inventory 1.1
Trade and other receivables 1.8
Cash at bank 9
Financial liabilities - borrowings (2.6)
Trade and other payables. .9
Currentincome tax liabilities (0.5) B
Deferred tax liabilities (1.8)
Total identifiable assats 10.0
Goodwill 7.0
Total consideration 17.0
£m
Satistied by
Cash 10.2
Oebt repaid 1.9
Earmout considenation 49
Total consideration transfarred 17.0
For the year
ended 3 July
2022
£€m
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition.
Cash consideration 10.2
Debt repaid 1.9
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.9)
8.2

Goadvill, being the excess of the consideration over the net langible and intangible assets acquired, represents benefits which do not qualify for recognition as intangible assats, including the ability of 3 business to generate

higher returns than individual assats, skilled workdorces, and acquisition of synargios that are specific to the Group. The gaodwill recognised of £7.0m is non-tax deductible.

The tair vatues of all of the assets and liakilities acquired are provisional. The Directors are continuing to assess the impact of accounting for thesa acquisitions up fo the date of these financial statements, Final fair values will

ba incorporated in the 2023 financial statements.

Financiai informaticn

In the year ended 3 July 2022, the acquired business, contributed £16.2m to revenue and increased prafit befare finance costs and tax by £1.7m, for the part period under the Group's ownership.

Had the businesses been acquired at the beginning of the year, the Group's fevenues, would have been £3,884.3m with the acquired businesses contributing £21.0m. The (oss for the yaar before finance costs and tox would

have been £43.8m, with the acquired businessas contributing £2.6m of profit.

25. and directors’
Group Company
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July ended 3 July ended 4 July
Avarage manthly number of people employed by the Group and Campany during the year: 2022 2021 2022 2021
Number Number Number Number
Distribution, manutacturing and selling 11,459 10,524 5,748 4,892
Administration 1,365 1,373 465 508
12,824 11.897 6,211 5.501
Group Company
. For the yeor For the year For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 poril 2022 2021
£€m £m £m £m
The costs incurred in respect of these employees wers:
Wages and salaries 440.5 347.2 2219 155.8
Sociol security costs a7.8 7.7 213 17.4
Defined benafit pension {credit) / costs 15 28 - -
Defined contribution pension costs (note 17) 12.2 13.4 8.0 14.0
541.8 443.1 252.2 186.8
Key
For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 201
£m £m
Salaries and short-term benefits [A] 20
Post-employment benefits - 0.4
0.1 23

The key management figures given above include directars. The Group considers key management to be those persons who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the

Group,
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25. Employees and directors’ emoluments (continued)

Directors' emotuments

Fortheyear  For the year
ended 3July  ended 4 Juy
w22 202
£000 £000
Aggregats smoluments 56 1,954
Company pension contributions to money purchass schemes [ ”
Ratirement benafits are acering to 1 (2021: oy
Emoluments paid to the highest paid director are as follows:
‘Aggrogote emolumonts and benafits 56 48

Tnhe yoar anded 3 July 2023 o oplons and parformance 2021 520

26, Equity settied share scheme

Sysco Camparation provice o share-based payment armangemant to Brakes employees under the Sysco Omrikus Incentve Plan (2018 Plan) and certain employaes of Brakes Group have been awarded Sytco stack optians,
resticted stack units and perfarmanca share units (PSUs] under tis 2018 Plan.

Vesting requirements for awards under the 2018 Plan vary by individual
one year. lito of ol the 2

ot may includ e me-aced ving o o oased vesting sijectt accefeaton basod on porarmenco citersfor fco perods ofatfeast
than ten years.

rds i g overa i i i QUi ica peri the award.

Ouring the year 42,738 (2021: 80,731) resticted stock units were granted to Brakes employacs which Wil vest rateably over o three-year period. The weighted average grantdat fair valus per resirictad stock unit granted in
the period was US$80.78 (2021: US$71.56).

During he year. 20525 PSits (2021 $,956) wers rente 1 akes emslods, Dsa il comer i shares of Sysco comman stock a thesndof e perormance pedod based on aciuslsedomar trpes ctiovd, 38
etbased retum of Syscas common etock relative o that of the ir value per PSU grantad in the year was US§77.07 (2021: US$58.08).

of each option is estimated as of the date of grant using @ don pricing model, € yield i on the historical pattern of
yaar precodin the opin grint. Expocte velatilty i bied an el vtalityof Syoe's sk, mpied ol rom traded opions on Syacsa sisck and the fatar. Th i o e o o th xpectod trm of
us y the grant. i data to

The weighted average assumptions discussad above are noted below:

For the year For the year
ended 3 July endod 4 July
Group and company 2022 2021
Dividend yielg 8% 7R
Expocted valatiity 30.4% 2.1%
Rigiree interast rate 100 5%
Expected ifa 86 years 7.0 years
ing the year ended 4 July 2021 and existed at the year and:
For the year ended 3 July 2022 For the year ended 4 July 2021
Weighted Weighted
Number of share  average Number of share _averago exsrcise
Group and Company options ___exercise price optians prics
Outstanding at beginring of year 36672 34 $60.50
Granted during the yaar $77.08 2 $58.08
Exercioad during the year 366.32 $62.99
Forteitad during the year $67.13 36525
the yoor 354881 36847 497651 36850
Vestad ot expectod to vest 08 of 3 Jly 2022/ 4 July 2021 132397 568.58 269,524 36688
Exarcisablo at the end of the period 220937 36239 223,089 6648
share-based compensation cost included vithin operating expenses in tha Graup for the year ended 3 July 2022 was £4.4m (2021: £3.9m), with 3 capital oauity.
ocognised on 1£6.4m (2025 £5.4m) in respect of the above scheme,
27, Commitments
Group Company
At3July2022 - At4 dly 2020 A3 July2022  ALSly 2021
m £m em £m
not provided 180 84 160 78
.5 m (2024: £5.5m)is i of icles and £0.5 m (2021: £2.9m) s i plant and machinery. (T hardviara and saftware,
155m in respoct of motor veticles and £0.5 m (2021: £2.4m) s i tof inery. IT
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28. Reloted party transactions

During the year ths Company continued to provide and receive funding to and from other Group companies, and has afso into certain other ions with other ies in the Sysco C: jon Group, Details of these
transactions ara as follows:

For the year For the year
ended 3 July ended 4 July
2022 2021
£m £m
Loans owed by parent undertakings 2283 2247
Loans awed to parent undertalings {120.3) (119.8)
Loans owed to Group undertakings 1321} (132.1)
Amounts owed by parent undentakings 97.3 167
Amounts owed by related undentakings 0.8 0.4
Trade and other payables owod to parent undertakings (157.8) (161.2)
Trade and other payabies owed to Group undertakings 30.2) (68.9)
Trade and other payables owed to related undertakings (14.5) (12.1)
Trade and other receivables owed by subsidiary undertakings 55.1 57.4
Interest payable to parent undertakings (7.5) 5.5)
Debt issun costs payable (o parent undartakings . 0.2)
Interest payable to subsidiary undertakings .9) (7.8)
Interest receivable from subsidiary ing: - 57
Interest receivable from parent undertakings 13 128
Sales to subsidiary undertakings. 16.4 22
Sales to Sysco Carporation Group undertakings. 58 -
from subsidiary 1 72,0 40.7
Purchases from Sysco Corporation Group undertakings 0.2 0.6
None of the balances owad to or by parent G sidiary dngs or iates are secured.

Key management compensation is disclosed in note 25, retirement bensfit cbligations sro disclosed in note 37,

29. Government Grants
During the year ended 3 July 2022, the Group were recipients of Govemmant Grants in respect of the subsidisation of wages as a result of staff being furloughed as a result of the impact of Covid-19. In the year ended 3 July

2022 the Group has recorded grant income of £12.0m {2021: £38.1m} in respect of 12,824 employees from the relevant Government schemes. At 3 July 2022 none (2021: E0m) of these expected receipts were outstanding
and included in other receivables.

30. Ultimate parent company and controliing party

Thei ote parent ing is Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom.
The Company's utimsate parent dng and ing party is Sysco C. ion, a company i in the United States.
The parent undertaking of the smallest and largest Group to consolidate these financial statements is Sysco Corporstion, Copies of Sysco C ion's Group finangial «can be obtained trom 1390 Endave

Parkway, Houston, Texas, United states.

31. Post balance sheet eventy

No material events have occurred since the statement of financial position date which would affect the financial statements of the Company or Group,
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